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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of SH Group
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company"), | am pleased to present the annual report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2018 (the “Year" or "FY2018").

The Group is principally engaged in providing electrical and mechanical engineering (“E&M
engineering”) services in Hong Kong. We focus our efforts on the supply, installation and
maintenance of mechanical ventilation and air-conditioning system (“MVAC system”) and
also provide services in relation to low voltage electrical system and other E&M systems,
including fire services system, plumbing and drainage system, in both private and public

sectors.

During the Year, the Group recorded an increase in revenue by approximately HK$77.5
million, or 26.7%, from approximately HK$290.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2017
(“Last Year" or "FY2017") to approximately HK$367.9 million for the Year. The Group
recorded a profit for the Year of approximately HK$35.6 million. Excluding the one-off
listing expenses of approximately HK$ 6.7 million charged to the profit or loss during Last
Year, the profit for the Year of the Group would have increased by approximately HK$8.8

million.

During the Year, the Group was awarded 33 projects with an aggregate contract sum of
approximately HK$755.1 million, out of which 2 projects with aggregate contract sum of
approximately HK$74.1 million were related to electrical system installation. The awarding
of new projects would provide the Group a stable revenue and eaming in the coming

years.

Thanks to the various policy initiatives of and support from the Hong Kong Government,
the construction industry and E&M engineering services industry in Hong Kong have
continued to expand in both public and private sectors. The public sector is experiencing
a strong growth under the Government's initiative to increase public housing supply
and implement infrastructure projects. The private sector has also benefited from the
Hong Kong Government's effort in increasing land supply used for private residential
development and commercial buildings, through such measures as urban redevelopment

and change in urban land use.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Despite the opportunities in the market, the Group is faced with certain industry-
wide challenges, which will have impact on our operation. In particular, the labour
shortage problem, exacerbated by an ageing workforce and lack of skilled talents, as
well as the increasing equipment and material costs will exert pressure on the Group's
business. Besides, since new participants with appropriate skills, local experience, capital
and requisite licenses granted by the regulatory bodies could enter the market, the
competition in the industry becomes more intensified and the Group needs to adopt a

more competitive pricing strategy to bid for sizable projects.

Having said that, the Group will continue to bid for targeted projects with reasonable
profit margin and diversify our projects in different E&M engineering services in order to
tap into the opportunities in the growing market. With our long-established reputation,
experience and proven track record in the industry, the Group takes a positive attitude in

achieving a steady growth in our business in the years to come.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank the management
team and my fellow staff members for their contribution during the Year. | would also
like to express my sincere appreciation to our customers, suppliers, subcontractors, other
business partners and our shareholders for their continuous support. To reward our
shareholders, the Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK2.2 cents per

share.

Yu Cheung Choy

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2018

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Annual Report 2017-18

BATERBRERE AREAHEZAKE
HEMEEERTENDTENLE - LH
= HTRRABESHADRHELEH
BRAA RO T B - NERE R
RAKELT  BEAEEEBHIES -
o mRERRER - TgR B2
WREBAEERBRLAMTERNFTSES
ﬁ%%“%km% EA) %%REE&

o AKEFTERAERENNTEERR
£ RIRABIER o

BENML  ARERSRERRREHAEE
FMEMBRER - WRERMATIARELR
RBEBEAZ T  BRIMERNTS
B8 BRERPAETEARMRUNES
BRERHRECE  NEEHRREER
PXRBOREERFLEEE

AANBURREZQRGEREKRANZEL
ERFREELNER  TRAEF  #HE
B ORAER  EMEEEHENRE BN
REBFNZH - REHRE EFTCER
IR AREARR S8R 2.2 84l -

R
ESh

BE T /\FXAZ+=H



The Group is principally engaged in providing E&M engineering services in Hong Kong.
We provide services in relation to the supply, installation and maintenance of MVAC
system, and also provide services in relation to low voltage electrical system and other
E&M system, including fire services system, plumbing and drainage system, in both private

and public sectors.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Our revenue increased by approximately HK$77.5 million, or 26.7%, from approximately
HK$290.4 million for FY2017 to approximately HK$367.9 million for FY2018, which was
mainly due to the increase in average contract size of projects during FY2018, comparing
to FY2017. Major projects awarded and major projects undertaken in FY2018 are outlined

below.

Projects awarded in FY2018

During FY2018, we were awarded 33 projects with an aggregate contract sum of
approximately HK$755.1 million (out of which 2 projects with aggregate contract sum of

approximately HK$74.1 million were related to electrical system installation).

gement Discussion and Analysis

EEEWR DT

AEETERERENFRERETZR -
RAREALE R D SRR - ZREE
fEH R E = 3 R 500 E R LARTS - ThfR
FREEERARLAMKERG(REH
B &S~ HRMEES 24 B IR -

EROE

RMOBER Tt ENLN2048E
BITEMOTISBEERETRWIXEF
—N\HENKIIBEBETL TERAA
—E-)\WEHE-_T-+BFHEL  BEF
HELBREEN - —T— )\ FERNEE
THE RAEENEEEEBMN T -

R-ZB-NHFEERNEE

R-T—\BF  RACEREDBEDOR
7551 BEETTM I ERE (AR ANREYN
R4 BEETH2EHEERERARLE
AR -

IREEE (ZR) ARAR
F# 2017-18



Management Discussion and Anal

BEEENWR D

The following table sets forth the particulars of the five largest projects awarded in FY2018

in terms of contract sum:

Key scope of work

TETREE

MVAC system installation for a proposed development at Kwun Tong

ERNREZERARNBHBRERARTE

MVAC system installation for a proposed development at Tai Wai
AENRZERAEOERBRERRALE

MVAC system installation for a proposed residential development
at Pak Shek Kok, Tai Po
AHBRANREETERAROBMBAZHARLE

MVAC system installation for a property development at Yuen Long
TR ERRIA R WEMBRZRRGLE

MVAC system installation for a proposed residential development
at Pak Shek Kok, Tai Po
AHBRANREETERAROBMBRAZHARLE

Note: “Residential projects” refer to projects that involve residential flats while “Non-residential

projects” refer to projects that do not involve residential flats.
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Date of award

ERBH

5 December 2017
“T—+tF+=-AAA

|2 September 2017
“E—tFNATZH

7 December 2017

“T—+F+ZAtH
20 June 2017
—E-LFRAZTRA

24 October 2017
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Contract sum

BHEE
HK$'million
BEEER

199.8

94.0

80.7

69.9

56.7



Management Discussion and Analysis

Major projects undertaken in FY2018

During FY2018, the Group continues to focus our efforts on the supply, installation and
maintenance of MVAC system in both private and public sectors. Revenue contributed by
projects relating to MVAC system accounted for approximately 91.3% for FY2018 (2017:
99.3%).

The following table sets forth the particulars of the five largest projects undertaken in

FY2018 in terms of revenue contribution:

EEENWR TN

REB-\MFRENEETR

R-Z—\MF FEBEEZITNEAH
RILVEREBMEIE - 2R REEHNREZH
A —E-\MEEEHBRZHRASRE
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Revenue

Type recognised

(Residential/ during FY2018

Non-residential) i

Key scope of work R/ Date of award Contractsum  —Z—\BI&
IEIREE FEE) ERAH AHEE  ERMKE

HK$'million HK$'million
BB BB

MVAC system installation for a remodeling project at Tsim Sha Tsui Non-residential 4uly 2014 166.8 844
RPENIETRR R HBRE S RRTE FEE —F-NELANA

MVAC system installation for a proposed property development at Kai Tak Residential 2 June 2016 740 683
HENRENFERBBNBHBEZAZRLE FE —T-R"FXAZH

MVAC system installation for a property development at Tseung Kwan O Residential 25 February 2016 [61.0 586
BERNBELRER OBHBRZARRLE E “Z-5-A-t+hA

MVAC system installation for a property development at Tseung Kwan O Residential I March 2016 531 500
RERNBELRER ORHBRZAERLE TE “T-R"¥=Rt-H

MVAC system installation for a proposed commercial development at Kwun Tong  Non-residential 30 March 2015 945 344
BENRERFRTRAARHBEZAZRLE JEEE —E-Af=H=1H
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Recent Development and Future Prospects

Subsequent to FY2018 and up to the date of this report, we were awarded | project with
a contract sum of approximately HK$72.0 million, which was related to electrical system

installation.

The construction industry and E&M engineering services industry in Hong Kong have
continued to expand. The public sector is experiencing a strong growth under the
Government's policies to increase public housing supply and implement infrastructure
projects. The private sector has also benefited from the Hong Kong Government's effort

in increasing land supply used for private residential and commercial development.

Despite the opportunities in the market, the Group is faced with certain industry-wide
challenges, such as labour shortage problem and the increasing equipment and material
costs, which will exert pressure on the Group's business. Besides, due to the intensified
competition in the industry, the Group needs to adopt a more competitive pricing strategy

to bid for sizable projects.

Having said that, the Group will continue to bid for targeted projects with reasonable
profit margin and diversify our projects in different E&M engineering services in order to
tap into the opportunities in the growing market. The Group takes a positive attitude in

achieving a steady growth in our business in the years to come.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our revenue increased by approximately HK$77.5 million, or 26.7%, from approximately
HK$290.4 million for FY2017 to approximately HK$367.9 million for FY2018. Such
increment was mainly due to the increase in average contract size of projects during
FY2018, comparing to FY2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross profit and gross profit margin

QOur gross profit increased by approximately HK$16.3 million, or 35.4% from
approximately HK$46.0 million for FY2017 to approximately HK$62.3 million for
FY2018. Our gross profit margin increased by approximately |.I percentage point, from
approximately 15.8% for FY2017 to approximately 16.9% for FY2018. The increase in
gross profit margin was mainly attributable to a change in project mix towards more
residential projects, which generally offer a higher gross profit margin than non-residential

projects.
Other income

Other income for FY2018 increased by approximately HK$0.3 million, from approximately
HK$0.4 million for FY2017 to approximately HK$0.7 million for FY2018. The change was

mainly attributable to the increase in bank interest income.

Other gains and losses, net

We recorded a decrease in net other gains of approximately HK$0.2 million for FY2018

because there was no gain on disposal of property and equipment in FY2018.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$5.6 million, or approximately
40.6%, from approximately HK$13.8 million for FY2017 to approximately HK$19.4
million for FY2018. The increase was mainly attributable to (i) the increase in staff costs of
approximately HK$3.9 million due to the increment in salary and bonus; and (ii) increase
in professional fees of approximately HK$ 1.1 million after the successful listing of the
shares of the Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing”) through global offering (“Global Offering”).

Finance costs

Our finance costs solely represented bank interest expenses. The amount remained
relatively stable, with an amount of approximately HK$0.4 million for FY2018 and HK$0.5
million for FY2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Listing expenses

Listing expenses of approximately HK$16.7 million was incurred in FY2017. There was no

listing expense incurred in FY2018 as the Listing was completed in January 2017.

Income tax expenses

Our income tax expenses increased by approximately HK$2.0 million, from approximately
HK$5.6 million for FY2017 to approximately HK$7.6 million for FY2018 due to the
combined effect of the above factors. The effective tax rate for FY2018 was approximately
[7.6%, which was lower than that of 35.8% for FY2017. The decrease in effective tax
rate for FY2018 was mainly due to the absence of HK$16.7 million non-deductible listing
expenses incurred in FY2017. Excluding these one-off listing expenses from the profit

before income tax, the effective tax rate for FY2017 would have been 7.3%.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Based on the above factors, profit attributable to owners of the Company increased by
approximately HK$25.5 million, or approximately 2.5 times, from approximately HK$ 0.1
million for FY2017 to approximately HK$35.6 million for FY2018.

Excluding the one-off listing expenses of approximately HK$16.7 million being charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for FY2017,
profit attributable to owners of the Company would have increased by approximately

HK$8.8 million for FY2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Capital Structure

As at 31 March 2018, the capital structure of the Group consisted of equity of
approximately HK$228.0 million (2017: HK$192.5 million) and bank borrowings of
approximately HK$12.1 million (2017: HK$15.0 million).

Cash position and fund available

During the Year, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity position, with working capital

being financed by our operating cash flows, bank borrowings and the retained profits.

As at 31 March 2018, our cash and cash equivalents were approximately HK$158.9 million
(2017: HK$100.3 million). The Group also had bank deposits of approximately HK$31.1
million (2017: HK$31.2 million) pledged with banks to secure the bank borrowings and

banking facilities including performance guarantees issued by the banks.

As at 31 March 2018, the current ratio of the Group was approximately 3.0 times (2017:
2.9 times).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Bank borrowings

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had total bank borrowings of approximately HK$12. 1
million (2017: HK$15.0 million). As at 31 March 2017, the Group had a facility agreement
entered into with a bank with a facility limit of approximately HK$59.4 million. Our
Company had made undertakings relating to certain performance obligation of the
controlling shareholders, namely Mr. Yu Cheung Choy and Mr. Lau Man Ching, pursuant
to the facility agreement including the following: (i) Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau undertake to
maintain majority shareholding of our Company; and (i) Mr. Yu shall remain the chairman
of our Company or we shall notify the bank [4 days in advance in case he ceases to be
the chairman. Subsequent to 31 March 2018 and prior to the date of this report, such
facility agreement was renewed with a facility limit of approximately HK$54.0 million. The
above-mentioned undertakings relating to certain performance obligation of the controlling
shareholders were replaced by the following obligation undertaken by the Group: (i) In
case of Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau are not the major shareholders of the Company, the Group
should notify the bank 14 days in advance; and (i) In case of Mr. Yu is not entitled to be

chairman of the Company, the Group should notify the bank 14 days in advance.

During FY2018, the Group had entered into another facility agreement with a bank
with a facility limit of HK$30.0 million. Our Company had made undertakings relating
to certain performance obligation of the controlling shareholders pursuant to the facility
agreement including the following: (i) Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau undertake to maintain as the
largest shareholders of the Company directly or indirectly; and (i) Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau
shall remain as the chairman or director of the Company. The facility agreement remains

effective up to the date of this report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's gearing ratio was approximately 5.3% (2017: 7.8%),
calculated as the bank borrowings divided by the total equity as at the end of the
respective years and multiplied by [00%.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had net current assets of HK$173.0 million (2017:
HK$136.8 million). The increase in net current assets position was mainly attributable to

the net profit generated from the Group's operations during the Year.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from the banks to meet its liquidity requirements. The Board
is not aware of any liquidity issue that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to

continue as a going concern.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Group's capital expenditures for FY2018 amounted to approximately HK$0.8
million (2017: HK$0.8 million), which was incurred due to the purchase of property and

equipment.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group's revenue-generating activities and bank borrowings were transacted in Hong
Kong Dollar, which is the functional currency of the group entities. The Board considers
that the Group was not exposed to significant foreign exchange risk, and had not entered
into any financial instrument for hedging. The Board will review the Group's foreign

exchange risk and exposure from time to time and will apply hedging where necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

Based on the Offer Price of HK$1.20 per share, the net proceeds of the 80,000,000 issued
shares received by the Company was approximately HK$69.0 million, after deducting the
listing expenses borne by the Company. The proposed application of net proceeds as
stated in the prospectus of the Company dated |9 December 2016 (the “Prospectus”)

has been adjusted according to the principles and proposed percentage of utilisation as

specified in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus.

Up to 31 March 2018, the net proceeds were used as follows:

ERMDEBETIRREES

Development and expansion of
E&M engineering services business
Provision of performance guarantees for HEREERRHEBEORE
projects on hand
Installation of Enterprise Resource Planning ~ ZH X ERREIZ M
system

—REEER

General working capital

EHARBRBEREAR

JUBSIEE A

AR aE EE

ERBEEBEERKRHI208 T MK
METRX  AAFERER
80,000,000 f& 2 # 1T Bk {7 89 Y
ROOEEAT - ARAAHAZT— R F
TZATNABNERER(TBERERDHRHM
HFENBRTEAREREERER

FRRFEN

ARG & R SRR R | — SR A R
AlREEsma s tiEt Rz -

BEE_Z-/\F=ZA=+—8 " HMEXEF

The Group held the unutilised net proceeds mainly in short-term deposits with licensed

banks in Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed below, the Group had no other contingent liabilities as at 31 March

2018:

As at 31 March 2018, performance guarantees of approximately HK$31.5 million (2017:
HK$28.6 million) were given by banks in favour of the Group's customers as security
for the due performance and observance of the Group's obligations under the contracts
entered into between the Group and its customers. If the Group fails to provide
satisfactory performance to its customers to whom performance guarantees have been
given, such customers may demand the banks to pay to them the sum or sum stipulated
in such demand. The Group will become liable to compensate such banks accordingly.

The performance guarantees will be released upon completion of the contracts work.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 March 2018, the Group's bank deposits amounted to approximately HK$3 1.1
million (2017: HK$31.2 million) and leasehold land and buildings amounted to
approximately HK$20.6 million (2017: HK$21.3 million) were pledged with banks to
secure the bank borrowings and banking facilities including performance guarantees issued

by the banks.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2018, the Group did not have any capital commitments contracted but

not provided for.

EMPLOYEES, TRAINING AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 3| March 2018, the Group had a total of 93 employees (2017: 82). The
remuneration offered to employees generally includes salaries, medical benefits and bonus.
In general, the Group determines salaries of its employees based on each employee’s
qualification, position and seniority. The Group provides training to its employees

according to the work requirements.
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Management Discussion and .
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates

and joint ventures during FY2018.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

The Group did not have any significant investments held as at 31 March 2018.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have other plans for material investments or capital assets as at 31
March 2018.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group is principally engaged in providing E&M engineering services in Hong Kong. We
focus our efforts on the supply, installation and maintenance of MVAC system, and also
on the provision of services in relation to low voltage electrical system and other E&M
systems, including fire services, plumbing and drainage, in both private and public sectors in

Hong Kong.

We have established this Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report in
accordance with the Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) to disclose our policies
and performance relating to our material ESG issues arising from our principal business
for the Year. We have engaged our stakeholders to better understand their priorities
and concerns regarding our business in general, and sustainability in particular. We have
identified the below material ESG issues for our Group to be included in this ESG report,

based on the feedback we obtained from our key stakeholders:
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KRAEERBERZR RS H%ﬁh@ﬁ
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ESG ISSUES FOR THE GROUP AEBEKRESGEENHE
ESG aspects set out in the Material ESG issues LHRAIETE HEAKEREEN
Listing Rules to the Group ESGHBLE ESG&E
Environmental RIEFHE
Al Emissions * Air and Greenhouse Gases Emissions Al B o FENBEREHW

* Waste Management
A2 Use of Resources! *  Energy Consumption and Efficiency
A3 The Environment * Noise Control

and Natural Resources *  Environmental Management System

Due to our business nature as an E&M engineering service provider, our operation does not
involve any significant consumption of water and packaging materials and therefore, the relevant

disclosures are not applicable.
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ESG aspects set out in the Material ESG issues LHRBIFTE HEEEBEEN
Listing Rules to the Group ESGHEAE ESG &R

Social HEFE

Bl Employment +  Equal Opportunities Bl &M s RFHKE

*  Recruitment and Termination

*  Promotion, Remuneration and Working

Conditions
B2 Health and Safety *  Occupational Health and Safety
B3 Development and Training *  Employee Training and Career Development
B4 Labor Standards *  Prohibition of Child Labor and Forced Labor
B5 Supply Chain Management *  Supply Chain Monitoring
B6 Product Responsibility *  Quality Management

e Protection of Customer Information and

Intellectual Property Rights

B7 Anti-corruption *  Preventing Bribery and Corruption
B8 Community Investment +  Charity Support
ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group strives to minimise the environmental risks and impact associated with the
Group's operations. The Group established an “Environmental and Occupational Health
and Safety Manual” (the “Manual”) for compliance with the International Organization for
Standardization (“1SO") 14001:2015 environmental management system and Occupational
Health and Safety Assessment Series (“OHSAS") 18001:2007. With the implementation
of the Manual, we aim to improve our environmental performance at both our offices
and sites, and to promote awareness among our employees and contractors, in key issues
including greenhouse gases (“GHG") emissions, energy consumption and waste disposal,

air quality and noise.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The management of the Group is responsible for monitoring the compliance of relevant
local law and regulations as well as international standards, including but not limited
to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Waste Disposal Ordinance, Water Pollution
Control Ordinance, Noise Control Ordinance, and relevant regulations as set out by the

Environmental Protection Department of the HKSAR.

During the Year, the Group has not identified any material non-compliance with

environment-related laws and regulations in Hong Kong.

Air and Greenhouse Gases Emissions

The major source of our emissions is the indirect GHG emissions generated from our
electricity consumption in offices. The total indirect GHG? emissions and intensity for the
Year were 5843 tonnes CO2e and 0.005 tonnes CO2e per square foot area respectively.
There were no significant air emissions generated directly by the Group during the Year,
since the services provided by the Group were mainly project management in nature, and

the actual engineering works are performed by our subcontractors.

Despite the fact that we do not generate significant air emissions directly, we fulfil our
environmental responsibility by actively monitoring the environmental performance of our
subcontractors. The Group requires that all construction matenials in transit to be covered
throughout the transportation process to avoid the spreading of dusts and particles.
Additionally, the Group encourages our subcontractors to use low-Sulphur diesel for
vehicles and to conduct regular inspection and maintenance to ensure the emission level

meets the regulatory standards.

The Group advocates the avoidance of ozone depleting refrigerants such as Hydro-
chlorofluorocarbons (HCFCs) in our projects, and promote the use of environmentally
friendly ones such as Chlorofluorocarbon (CFC). Also, the purchase of refrigerants should
only be made when necessary to prevent leakage and pollution at construction sites due

to the excessive chemical storage.

z Calculation of total GHG emission is based on the HKEx ESG Guideline Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs. Emission factor for electricity is based on the “Natural Capital”

data from CLP Sustainability Report 2017.
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Moreover, for projects involving asbestos, we require our subcontractors to assign only
workers with relevant qualifications to perform the contracted works, and they should be

supervised by a consultant registered with Environment Protection Department.

We have also undertaken a series of measures to control the indirect GHG emissions. For

detalils, please refer to section “Energy Consumption and Efficiency’ below.

Woaste Management

Paper has been identified as a major source of wastes in our operation with a total
consumption of 4.4 tonnes during the Year. For waste reduction and operation efficiency
purposes, the Group is implementing various paperless measures such as the use of
electronic communications, electronic file storage and sharing; and employees are
encouraged to carry out paper saving office practices such as duplex printing and to use

recycling paper for printing internal documents to minimise the use of paper.

During the Year, there was no hazardous waste produced directly by the Group.
However, we strive to maintain strict control on any potential hazardous waste
generated by our subcontractors. The Group has established guidelines to require our
subcontractors to implement sound waste management mechanism and measures. For
instance, all wastes generated on site are required to be packed, labelled and stored
securely in a proper manner especially for chemical wastes. A licensed collector should
be hired by the responsible subcontractors to handle and dispose of such wastes to
designated sites. Records should also be maintained for inspections internally as well as by

the Environmental Protection Department.

Energy Consumption and Efficiency
During the Year, the amount and intensity of electricity consumed directly by the Group
were 71,123 kWh and 6.5 kWh per square foot of office area respectively.

To control the electricity consumption as well as the corresponding GHG emissions,
the Group has established and implemented the following energy-saving principles and

initiatives during the Year:

. Eliminate unnecessary energy consumption by switching off idle office equipment,

lighting and air-conditioning;
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

. Use energy efficient appliances in our offices, such as LED lightings, electric

appliance and electronic devices with Grade | Energy Label;

J Raise awareness among employees by regular training and communications on best

energy saving practices;
. Incorporate energy saving behaviors into daily business practices.

Besides proper controlling the electricity consumption within the Group, we aim to
introduce energy and water-efficient E&M systems to our clients such as energy friendly
motors and multi-speed fans for ventilation systems, water-cooled heat rejection systems,
and condensate water collection system, in order to contribute to the global effort of

mitigating climate change.

Noise Control

The Group is aware of the noise issues induced due to E&M works performed by
subcontractors at construction sites with heavy mechanical equipment involved in some
projects. Therefore, we require our subcontractors to strictly observe all relevant local

laws and regulations including the Noise Control Ordinance.

For instance, only equipment with government approved noise emission labels are allowed
to be used and such equipment can only be operated within restricted hours to minimise
nuisance to the surrounding environment and residents. We also conduct necessary
testing and measures before commencement of works to ensure that the noise generated
will be on an acceptable level governed by laws and regulations. Close monitoring of our
subcontractors will be in place to check whether there is any potential violation of local

regulations.

Environmental Management System

The Group regularly performs environmental assessments to identify potential
environmental risks in workplace as well as the surrounding areas to ensure that the
relevant statutory requirements, contractual obligations, and the Group'’s commitment are

met for all our business activities.
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In addition, the Group has established an ISO [4001:2015 accredited environmental
management system with a purpose to minimise the environmental impact associated

with our business. The key features are summarised as below:

. Identify and assess environmental risks as well as relevant legal requirements on an

ongoing basis;

. Engage major stakeholders such as employees and subcontractors during the risk

assessment process, and jointly develop appropriate mitigation plans;

. Establish measurable and practicable environmental performance objectives and

targets, and to evaluate the effectiveness of controls regularly;

. Ensure the availability of resources, and define roles and responsibilities to facilitate

effective environmental performance management;

. Investigate and document environmental incidents properly in accordance with
relevant legislations and standards, and identify preventive and corrective measures;

and

. Perform management review of the environmental management system to assess

its adequacy and effectiveness, and identify opportunities for improvement.

SOCIAL
Equal Opportunities
The Group believes that treating our employees with faimess and respect is one of the

key factors to attract and retain talents.

Providing equal employment opportunities and promoting the value of diversity have
been and will always be a fundamental principle of the Group. Abiding by the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance, Disability Discrimination Ordinance and the Family Status
Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong, the Group forbids any form of discrimination
or harassment within our workplace and strives to treat all employees with dignity and

respect.

All decisions regarding recruitment, termination, training, remuneration, promotion of
employees should be based on personal capabilities and qualifications without any sort
of discrimination on race, skin color, religion, nationality, gender, age, disability or other

characteristics as protected by law.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

During the Year, we are not aware of any case of material non-compliance with

employment and labor-related laws and regulations in Hong Kong.

Recruitment and Termination

Moreover, the Group has established a structured recruitment and termination process.
Qualified candidates are selected and employed according to pre-set criteria for fair
assessment with the consideration of their interview performance, relevant experience,
and academic and professional qualifications. Also, in order to protect our employees from
unreasonable termination, discipline and discharge procedures have been developed and
inappropriate behaviors leading to disciplinary actions or termination has been specified in

the Employee Handbook distributed to all employees.

Promotion, Remuneration and Working Conditions

The Group has established a comprehensive evaluation mechanism to assess the
performance of employees in a fair manner for promotion and remuneration. Supervisors
are responsible for carrying out performance analysis of their subordinates based on their

goal achievements, strengths and development opportunities.

In addition to market practices and business performance of the Group, individual
performances are also taken into account when determining respective remuneration
packages, in order to fairly reward the contributions of our employees on the Group's
success as well as to attract and retain qualified talents. Their wages and benefits are
also regularly reviewed to ensure the remuneration packages are competitive and in

compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

On the other hand, the Group encourages work-life balance for our employees and thus
we are committed to the provision of fair and reasonable working hours, work allocation
and arrangements. They are also entitled to annual leave, sick leave, maternity and
paternity leave, as well as rest days in accordance with the Employment Ordinance and
General Holidays Ordinance. Group-subsidised staff gatherings such as luncheons, annual

dinners, BBQ, picnic, etc are also organised to enhance staff communication and morale.

RiE  #HERERES

RAEE  BRALTABEEAREERE
BRENRS THEZREANER -

ARERALER

pAh AEBER RSB RBRELRE
RiEF - REBLRENAFHERE - K
SEZREFEEANEARR  HBLRMA
REMMBERER  BREERABNRE
Ae R BTRERMNETRETSE
MRLER ARECHELERENR
FrY&Es%THRAEEINE TFMHETH
TEHRBRN IR ULERNTETR

B HMR TERE
AKBCERYEEEOF GRS HERR
RELAFHENBEEEAMNFMER - &
EEARERBEETEMBRTKER - 8
N RBRBEHEETRIRDN -

BRMSTTIERARBEBRERIN  BAARR
THRAABESEFMGERNERHE
AR 22BN E B AN R BRI FTER BIUA
BRI AREREBAL - BEMNTERE
MMEBRE SRR UEREFHTEA
BAHFNAREERERRER -

H—mE REEHEESEXNTERLE
HFE - AHEMBORERAFAENT
fEBF &~ THRACAR Rk - RIBCER RG]
MARBRIED)  BRETBEEZEFR
wR - EREFEERARKER - RATE
MBREELENEIRE  fINFE &
S®E - B HFEZEY UMRETE
BRERER

IEREE (ZR) BRAA
F% 2017-18

25



26

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R - HERERKRE

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group recognises the importance of health and safety of our employees, as well as
subcontractors and other people who might be affected by our operation. Therefore, we
are fully committed to maintaining the highest standard of work safety practices. With
a set of safety management policy developed, all of our management, employees and

subcontractors are required to comply with the following principles:

. To comply with statutory and contractual requirements on occupational health and

safety and relevant codes of practice;

. To take occupational health and safety into account when planning engineering
activities;
. To provide adequate resources, training and instructions to implement effective

safety measures;

. To ensure an effective and efficient communication system on safety management

and incident reporting;

. To maintain continual improvement of occupational health and safety performance

by identifying safety risks and minimizing the impacts.

To effectively implement the aforementioned principles and approaches, we have
developed an occupational health and safety management system which has been

accredited with OHSAS 18001:2007 certification.

A safety team consists of members possessing relevant safety qualifications has been
established to perform safety risk assessment and hazard identification for each project
and to ensure all of the project plans comply with our safety guidelines as well as relevant

laws and regulations through regular site inspections.
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The Group also constantly prepares our employees to take necessary actions to prevent
and respond to emergency situations such as fire hazards. Various preventive measures
have been implemented which are regularly reviewed. Site workers are also briefed for
potential safety hazards by the safety team prior to commencement of work to minimise

chances of accidents.

During the Year, there were no injuries or fatalities recorded for our direct employees,
and we were not aware of any case of material non-compliance with occupational health

and safety-related laws and regulations in Hong Kong.

Employee Training and Career Development

The Group acknowledges the importance of training for the purpose of more satisfying
job performance and continuous development of employees. Therefore, the Group is
committed to providing relevant opportunities including induction programs and external
courses such as technical training and regulatory updates. We also support our employees
to obtain professional qualifications for the advancement of their career development.
Moreover, supervisors are responsible for providing their subordinates with feedback
on the job and we also encourage employees to maintain an open discussion about the

strengths and improvements of each other.

During the Year, our employees attended a series of training courses on diverse topics
ranging from technical aspects such as the control and practice of fresh water cooling
towers, construction safety supervising, and mechanical, electrical and plumbing engineers
("MEP") certification course; to corporate governance, ESG reporting and capital markets.
The Group will continue to provide support to our employees of all levels to enable their

growth with the Group.
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Prohibition of Child Labor and Forced Labor

The Group forbids any unlawful employment including child and forced labor. All of
our employees are required to provide relevant identification documents before the
commencement of work. The employment contracts should be signed out of their own
free will and without any coercion. We also require our subcontractors to register their
employees’ with identification document and license number to prevent the employment

of workers who are not legally eligible to take up any job duties in Hong Kong.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any case of material non-compliance with

child labor and forced labor-related laws and regulations in Hong Kong.

Supply Chain Monitoring
The Group encourages our supply chain partners including subcontractors, suppliers and

service providers to adopt environmentally and socially responsible practices.

We prefer to engage supply chain partners with satisfactory environmental and social
performance, and will maintain a close communication and monitoring regarding these
aspects. Regular evaluations such as on-site inspections are conducted and any exception
or non-compliance are reported to the management immediately. Timely remediation on
the risks identified is required, and failure in complying with our environmental and social

requirement may lead to termination of business relationship.
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Quality Management

To ensure our services quality, the Group has established a quality management system
("QMS") which has been accredited with ISO 9001:2015 certification, with a policy
manual in place which provides guidelines to our employees for meeting our objectives as

follows:

0 To provide effective and reliable services to satisfy the demands and expectations

of our clients;

0 To comply with all relevant standards, statutory and regulatory requirements;

. To provide appropriate training for employees to enhance quality of works and
services;

. To monitor and improve the effectiveness of QMS by conducting periodic internal

reviews, data analysis and enhancement; and

. To obtain feedback regularly to identify the improvement areas of QMS.

Protection of Customer Information and Intellectual Property Rights

The Group values the protection of confidential information of our employees and
customers as well as intellectual property rights. No personal or business sensitive
information are allowed to be taken away from our premises physically or through
company network unless it has been formally approved by the management and the

respective information is only for the use of performing job duties.

Furthermore, employees are required to acknowledge and comply with the Employee
Handbook in regards to the confidentiality clause which restricts employees from divulging
or communicating any customer or company-related information to any person outside
of the Group. Any unauthorised access, disclosure or use of information will be subject to

disciplinary actions including termination and legal action.

During the Year, we are not aware of any case of material non-compliance regarding

service quality and data privacy-related laws and regulations in Hong Kong.
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Preventing Bribery and Corruption

The Group has a zero-tolerance policy towards all forms of corruption and fraud such as
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. Therefore, an internal control system has
been established to monitor our major business activities ranging from tendering, project
management, procurement, payment, to financial reporting so as to control any potential
fraud risks. We have also regularly engaged an independent internal control adviser to
evaluate adequacy and effectiveness of our internal control system to ensure a sound

corporate goverance.

In addition, training from relevant organisations such as Independent Commission Against
Corruption and legal professionals are arranged for our management team and employees
to enhance their awareness of bid-rigging and bribes, as well as the relevant law and
regulations. Effective whistle blowing policy has been established in order to help identify

and handle fraudulent act properly.

Furthermore, our policy forbids employees to possess any financial or other personal
interest in transactions between the Group and our business partners. Potential conflicts
of interest that may increase the risk of bribery and bid-rigging will be monitored. If there
is any perceived, potential or actual conflict of interest, employees are required to report

to the management immediately.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any case of material non-compliance with

corruption-related laws and regulations in Hong Kong.
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Charity Support
Community involvement has always been a part of our corporate culture, and the Group
seeks to support various community activities and contribute to the society by means of
donations, sponsorships, and voluntary commitments. Moreover, we select our charity
partners based on their vision and mission as well as financial management to ensure our
effort and donation could effectively support the community as intended. In addition, we
also encourage and support our employees to take part in voluntary services and help the

underserved.

During the Year, our Group has participated in selected community events. For example,
the Group sponsored and assembled a team of staff and family to participate in the charity

walk event of the “World Cerebral Palsy Day" held by Silver Lining Foundation.

In addition to participating in community events, our Group has also supported certain
non-profit organisations such as Silver Lining Foundation and Lifewire Foundation Limited

through monetary donations for their charity work in providing aids to communities.
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The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance standard and
procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure in order to

enhance the shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Company aims to achieve high standard of corporate govemance which is crucial to

the development of the Group and safeguard the interests of the shareholders.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (“CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code of

corporate governance.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company was in compliance with the code provisions

set out in the CG Code during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions
as set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
("Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the

required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company, and is
responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well as reviewing the operation and
financial performance of the Group. The Board reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering overall Group strategy, major acquisitions and disposals, annual
budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on Directors” appointment or
reappointment, approval of major capital transactions and other significant operational and
financial matters. The management was delegated the authority and responsibility by the
Board for the daily management of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board committees. Further details of these committees are

set out in this report.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board currently consists of six Directors including two executive Directors, one non-

executive Director, and three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Yu Ho Chi

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Yim Nam

Mr. Lee Wing Kee

Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond

Save for (i) Mr. Yu Cheung Choy is the father of Mr. Yu Ho Chi, and (i) Mr. Yu Cheung
Choy and Mr. Lau Man Ching entered into the acting-in-concert confirmation on 7
July 2016, whereby they confirmed that, among other things, since 21 July 2004, they
have been actively cooperating with one another and acting in concert, with an aim to
achieving consensus and concerted action on all operating and financing decisions and
major affairs relating to each member company within the Group; the Board members
have no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each other.
Such balanced Board composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists across
the Board. The composition of the Board reflects the balanced skills and experience
for effective leadership. The biographical information of the Directors are set out on
pages 48 to 56 under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management".

Directors’ Training
According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to

ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development and provided to

the Company a record of training they received for the Year.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the Year is summarised below:

AT AFESEED RXNEABIIT

Attending

seminars/

reading materials

relevant to the

director’s duties

HEER

EEHE

ok

Name of Directors Esng BRI

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman) aRMEE(EE) v

Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer) BINBRE (TR AEZ) v

Mr. Yu Ho Chi AR K \

Mr. Lam Yim Nam MEEEE v

Mr. Lee Wing Kee FREXRE v

Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond HEBEE v
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer FRRITBAR

Code provision A2.1 of the CG Code requires that the responsibilities between the

chairman and the chief executive officer should be segregated.

The two positions are held separately by two individuals to ensure their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility. Mr. Yu Cheung Choy is the Chairman of
the Board and Mr. Lau Man Ching is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Yu
is in charge of the management of the Board and strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Lau
is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group's business. The Company
considered that the division of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief Executive

Officer is clearly established.

Code provision A2.7 of the CG Code requires that the Chairman should at least annually
holds meetings with the non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) without the executive Directors present. During the Year, the Chairman had
a meeting with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of the

executive Director.
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Non-executive Directors
The non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors are appointed for
a specific term and they are also subject to the retirement by rotation at least once every

three years in accordance with the Articles of Association.

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of high caliber, with academic
and professional qualifications in the fields of construction, accounting and finance. With
their experience gained from various sectors, they provide strong support towards the
effective discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board. Each independent non-
executive Director gave a confirmation of his independence to the Company, and the

Company considered each of them is independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Functions of the Board and Management
The Board is primarily responsible for establishing the overall strategies of the Group,
setting objectives and business development plans, assuming responsibility of corporate

governance and monitoring the performance of senior management.

The management, under the leadership of the executive Directors of the Company,
is responsible for implementing the strategies and plans established by the Board and
reporting on the Group's operations to the Board on a regular basis to ensure effective

performance of the Board's responsibilities.

All the Directors have separate and independent access to the Group's senior
management to fulfill their duties. Independent professional advice can be sought to assist
the relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the Group's expense upon their request.
All the Directors have been provided with monthly updates on the Group's performance
and financial position to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their

duties.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 6 December 2016 (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board and is committed to
enhancing quality of opportunity in all aspects of its business. The Company seeks
to achieve Board diversity through the consideration against a range of objective
criteria, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The Company will also take into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from time to time in determining

the optimal composition of the Board.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee will discuss and review the necessity to set

measurable objectives for implementing the Board Diversity Policy from time to time.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to

ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.

Board Meetings

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than fourteen days will be given
for all regular board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and
propose matters to be discussed in the meeting agenda. Agendas and accompanying
papers shall be sent not less than 3 days before the date of Board meeting to ensure that

the Directors are given sufficient time to review the documents.
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During the Year, the Board held 4 meetings. All Directors are given an opportunity to
include any matter in the agenda for regular Board meetings and are given sufficient time
to review the documents and information to be discussed in Board meetings in advance.

The attendance record of each Director is set out below:
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Number of
attendance
Name of Directors BEEpE H IR
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman) MR EE (£E) 414
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer) BINBRE(TTHAEZ) 414
Non-executive Director HHUTEE
Mr. Yu Ho Chi AVEE T E 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHITEE
Mr. Lam Yim Nam MR E 4/4
Mr. Lee Wing Kee FoRERE 4/4
Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond HRIEEE 4/4

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by the
Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary,

and has the liberty to seek external professional advice if so required.

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged by the Company in respect of relevant

actions against its Directors,
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General Meetings BREXE
During the Year, | general meeting of the Company, being the 2017 annual general E’\\Zﬁif‘; KRR BT RARREAE - B
meeting of the Company, was held on 18 August 2017. —+tFNATNBRIHZFT—LFR
Lﬁhﬁﬁiﬁ%°
Number of
attendance
Name of Directors BEEpg HE IR
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman) aRMEE(EE) I/
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer) BINBRE(TTHAEZ) I/
Non-executive Director HEHTEE
Mr. Yu Ho Chi ARt I/
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHITEE
Mr. Lam Yim Nam ML I/
Mr. Lee Wing Kee FRERE /1
Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond HRIEEE I/1
The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in EFQRRERRBERSHFE  LERHE

particular, uses annual general meetings or other general meetings to communicate with

them and encourage their participation.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Board will take into account the
qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and professional ethics of the

candidates.

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of reference
on 6 December 2016 and currently consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lee Wing Kee (as chairman), Mr. Lam Yim Nam and Mr. To Yan
Ming Edmond. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is currently made

available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are aligned with the code provisions

set out in the CG Code.
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The primary duties and roles of the Nomination Committee include, but are not limited
to, (a) reviewing the structure, size and composition and diversity (including the skills,
knowledge, educational background, experience and diversity) of the Board at least
annually and making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy; (b) identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become members of the Board and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board in the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; and (c) assessing the

independence of independent non-executive Directors.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held | meeting for assessing the
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independence of the independent non-executive Directors, considering the re-election of B IEMITEZNE LN ERESH
Directors, and reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board. BE ARBAIERENRE  RERKKE
%l -

Number of

attendance
Name of Members REKH HERE
Mr. Lee Wing Kee (Chairman) TkE(ERE) /1
Mr. Lam Yim Nam A I/
Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond RIS /1

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of reference
on 6 December 2016 and currently consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lam Yim Nam (as chairman), Mr. Lee Wing Kee and Mr. To Yan
Ming Edmond. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is currently made

available on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company's website.

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are aligned with the code provisions

set out in the CG Code.
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The primary duties and roles of the Remuneration Committee include, but not limited
to, (a) making recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the
remuneration of all Directors and senior management personnel and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing the policy on such remuneration; (b)
making recommendations to the Board on the specific remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management; (c) reviewing and approving management's
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;
and (d) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive

Directors.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held | meeting for reviewing the bonus
proposal for the executive Directors and senior management for FY'18 and considering
the salary review proposal for Directors and senior management for the financial year

2019.

FHZEENIERABREFIRR)@) M
PREZNSREREARNEMEELR
B ARBLHIRT EAR M EE AR R AZ Fr 5L a%
THMTLBR  MESSRLER © Ob)H
ERNRTEERSRERENSEHMES
MEFSREES  (2TEFENAAA

BRENEHREEEENTMIR : &
(RFRATEENFHRNETSRLES -

RAEE  FHEEECRIT—REHE N
BT \MFARARTEERSRER
EBNFREARELERE T NHHEE
EXERSREEEFMRAEE -

Number of

attendance
Name of Members REHE H IR
Mr. Lam Yim Nam (Chairman) MRERE(FE) /1
Mr. Lee Wing Kee FREXRE I/1
Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond HRIEEE /1
The emoluments payable to Directors and senior management depend on their respective ENEENSREEENHE AR TREESR
contractual terms under the employment agreements, if any, and is fixed by the Board BEREEAGZ E’] Hig(wE)  RHES
with reference to the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the performance erR2ELWMEESNESE  AEENERR
of the Group and the prevailing market conditions. Details of the remuneration of the METTRAGRET ESEhaMEERENS

Directors and senior management are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Senior Management’s Remuneration
Senior Management's remuneration of the Group for the Year falls within the following

bands:

BN BB AR /\ﬁﬁ%iﬁ%[ﬁuﬂo

BREEBHTH
FEERAEENRRERENE N TN
TEE

Number of

individuals

AH

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z £ 1,000,000 & 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference on 6
December 2016 and currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond (as chairman), Mr. Lam Yim Nam and Mr. Lee Wing
Kee and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Yu Ho Chi. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee is currently made available on the websites of the Stock Exchange

and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the code provisions set out

in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Audit Committee include, but not limited to, (a)
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of the external auditor, and approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal; (b) monitoring integrity
of financial statements and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing significant financial reporting judgments
contained in them; and (c) reviewing the financial controls, risk management and internal

control systems of the Group.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditors regularly to discuss any area of concern
during the audit. The Audit Committee shall review the interim and annual reports before
submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the
changes in accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements in the review of the Company's

interim and annual reports.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee held 3 meetings. REFEE  EREEGERT=ZREE -
Number of
attendance

Name of Members RE®E HERE

Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond (Chairman) HBIS(EE) 3/3

Mr. Lam Yim Nam WA 33

Mr. Lee Wing Kee FoxE 3/3

Mr. Yu Ho Chi AR 3/3

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed, among others, the annual and interim
results of the Group, which were in the opinion of the Audit Committee that the
preparation of such results complied with the applicable accounting standards and the

Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee noted the existing risk management and internal control systems of

the Group and also noted that review of the same will be carried out annually.

The accounts for the Year were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu whose term of
office will expire upon the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (2018 AGM"). The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board the
re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company at the 2018
AGM.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions are performed by the Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and review the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance to comply with the CG Code and other legal
or regulatory requirements, to oversee the Company's orientation program for new
Director, to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of
Directors, to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and Directors, and to review the Company's disclosure in

the Corporate Governance Report.
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During the Year, the Board had reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors, reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG Code and

reviewed the Company's disclosure in Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the Year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company's auditors are set out

below:

CREARS

RAEE  EZQCRAESNEIREE
EXER  ROAARETERERTAN
BRI ARRCREARENEES

=

E_o

ZEENE &
RAEE B/ BARREZEEANHS
T

Fee paid/payable

Bt/ ERER

HK$' 000

Services rendered SRR THET

Audit services BIZRS 1,380

Non-audit services* FEEZ R * 488

Total: R 1,868
* The non-audit services mainly include tax compliance services and other advisory services. * FERRBEEBEDGERREREMER

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial services provider,
Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to provide compliance and full range of
company secretarial services to the Group in order to assist the Group to cope with the

changing regulatory environment and to suit different commercial needs.

Mr. Tse Kam Fai (“Mr. Tse"), the representative of Uni-1, was appointed as the named

Company Secretary of the Company.

Mr. Lau Man Ching, an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, is the primary point of contact at the Company for the Company Secretary.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Tse has taken no less

than |5 hours of relevant professional training during the Year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for communication
between the shareholders and the Board. An annual general meeting of the Company
shall be held in each year and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each
general meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary

general meeting.

Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting

Shareholders may convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company according
to the provisions as set out in the Articles and The Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The procedures shareholders can use to convene an extraordinary
general meeting are set out in the document entitled “Procedures for Shareholders to

Convene General Meetings”, which is currently available on the Company's website.

Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the attention of the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong. The
procedures shareholders can use to send enquiries to the Board are set out in the
document entitled “Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board”, which is currently

available on the Company's website.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by shareholders at shareholders’ meeting
Shareholders should follow the procedures set out in the sub-section headed “Shareholders
to convene an extraordinary general meeting” above for putting forward proposals for

discussion at general meeting.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a general
meeting must be taken by poll except where the Chairman, in good faith, decides to allow
a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on
by a show of hands. As such, all the resolutions to be set out in the notice of 2018 AGM
will be voted by poll.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS
The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular communication and

reasonable disclosure of information to its shareholders.
Information of the Company is disseminated to the shareholders in the following manner:
0 Delivery of annual and interim reports to all shareholders;

. Publication of announcements on the annual and interim results on the Stock
Exchange website, and issue of other announcements and shareholders' circulars in

accordance with the continuing disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules; and

. General meeting of the Company is also an effective communication channel

between the Board and shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group's consolidated financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Group and of the financial performance and cash flows of the Group for that year.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year, the Board has selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; made judgments and estimates

that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the accounts on a going concem basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard

the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this
reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated

financial statements.

CREARS

HEEEBR
ADBBARBABBBOEER - EHEE

BERER - YRBRELAENEMKE -
ARBWBERHRAT I A RBREE
s MERBRRZEZFERFHES

o MNERABUTIEFERPHEED
DE RREETRAMNSERESR
EHBEEMASERREL R

. AARMBEARTEZEERRRE
2R — AR RES -

EEHGECHBHRRNER

EXeVRANRRASER B RE RN
FAMBHRRNEL  MEFRAMHHREK
AR E R R RN 5 B 0 B 75 RO e A
SERERMFENHBRARRLRE - N
WANEENEAMBHRRE  EFS0E
MYERERRENSHRE  FHER
DFRAENHE LR ARIRFELE
EEREERR -

EXRARMAERVENSE - IR
[BAREENEE KD IE R AR A
AERAMNEER -

ESEFNBEEERERRAR  AKEEER
RERNAERBREFERE - Hit - KA
REREEERAGAMBRRIBRE -

IEREE (ZR) BRAA
F% 2017-18

45



46

Corporate Governance Report
B fo S8 30 A

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide

reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of risk management
and internal control to the Audit Committee, who oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems, and
management has provided a confirmation to the Audit Committee (and the Board) on

the effectiveness of these systems for the Year.

Risk management

The Company has already reviewed its risk management framework and processes and
has implemented relevant measures resulting from this exercise that aim to enhance its
framework and processes. In particular, The Company has developed, approved and
implemented a risk management system, which is defined and supported by its endorsed
risk management policy. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee has included its

responsibility for an effective system of intermnal control and risk management.

The Company's methodology for its risk assessment comprises risk identification, risk
assessment, risk response, and risk monitoring and reporting. These processes are

performed at least once a year to address changes in the Group's business environment.

Internal control measures

The internal control system of the Group covers its major business aspects such as
revenue management, expenditure management, human resources and payroll, cash
and treasury management, financial reporting, compliance and information technology.
The internal control measures are supervised by management team including executive
Directors of the Company. The management team is responsible to identify risks and
internal control deficiencies, evaluate the internal control system of the Group from
time to time and implementing additional control measures, if necessary, to improve the
intemal control system. Results of the interal assessments, internal surveys and routine
inspections would be reported to the Audit Committee of the Board, which is responsible
to review the financial information and supervise the financial reporting system and internal

controls system of the Group.
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Internal audit function

The Board conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems, covering all material controls such as financial, operational and
compliance controls. In addition, the Board has appointed an international accountancy
firm to review the internal control systems of the Group on an on-going basis. For
the Year, the review covered key processes of revenue management, expenditure
management, human resources and payroll management of the Group. The Board
considered that the risk management and internal control systems of the Company for the

Year were effective and adequate.

Handling and dissemination of inside information

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside information according to
the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission in June 2012 to ensure inside information remains confidential until
the disclosure of such information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination of
such information is efficiently and consistently made. The Company regularly reminds
the Directors and employees about due compliance with all policies regarding the inside
information. Also, the Company keeps Directors, senior management and employees
appraised of the latest regulatory updates. The Company shall prepare or update

appropriate guidelines or policies to ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change in the constitutional documents of the Company.

The existing memorandum and articles of association of the Company are available on the

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEBRERE

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (BIR81), aged 54, is the chairman of the Board and an executive
Director. He is also the director of all subsidiaries of the Company. As the founder of
the Group, he became a controlling shareholder of Golden Light Engineering Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in March 1987 and established Shun
Hing E & M Engineering Limited (“Shun Hing HK"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, in August 1987. He is primarily responsible for leading the overall

development, business strategies and expansion of the Group.

Mr. Yu obtained a bachelor degree of engineering (building service management) with
honours from Washington InterContinental University in the United States through
distance leamning in March 2004.

Mr. Yu has over 30 vyears of experience in E&M engineering services industry. His
experience includes project management, supervision and execution for various E&M

engineering services projects.
Mr. Yu is the father of Mr. Yu Ho Chi, the non-executive Director.

Mr. Lau Man Ching (213X & ), aged 52, is the chief executive officer and executive Director.
He is also the director of all subsidiaries of the Company. He joined the Group and became
the sales and marketing manager of Shun Hing HK in October 1995. He then became the
director of Shun Hing HK in February 2000. He is primarily responsible for directing the

overall management and business operations of the Group.

Mr. Lau obtained a master degree of business administration in management from the
Southeastern University in the United States through distance learning in February
[996. He was awarded a diploma in management studies jointly from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic) and Hong Kong
Management Association in Hong Kong in September [994. He was also awarded a higher
diploma in building services engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
(formerly known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic) in Hong Kong in November 1987. He is
also the authorised signatory and technical director in the category of registered specialist
contractor (sub-register of ventilation works), and the category of minor works contractor

type E (Classes Il and Ill) with the Buildings Department for Shun Hing HK.
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Mr. Lau has over 29 vears in E&M engineering services industry. His experience include
business management, project management, supervision and execution for various E&M

engineering services projects.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Yu Ho Chi (BI7& &), aged 29, is the non-executive Director. He joined the Group
as non-executive Director on 27 June 2016. He is responsible for providing strategic

advice to the Group and acting as a member of the audit committee of the Company.

Mr. Yu graduated from the University of Melbourne in Australia with a bachelor degree of
commerce in 2009. He has been a certified public accountant under Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since March 2016. He has been also a member of CPA
Awustralia since July 2013.

Mr. Yu is currently working in a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
as Deputy Head of Investment Department. He was employed by an international

accounting firm, in the assurance practice and advisory practice between 2010 and 2016.

Mr. Yu is the son of Mr. Yu Cheung Choy, the chairman of the Board and an executive

Director.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Yim Nam (##E8), aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 6 December 2016, he is the chairman of the remuneration committee and a

member of the audit committee and nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. Lam obtained a master degree in business administration from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in December 1995. He also obtained a bachelor degree of
business administration with honours from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in Hong

Kong in July 1980.
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EEREREEEBRERE

Mr. Lam has held several positions in various banks. He was an independent director of
Shenzhen Rural Commercial Bank from May 2012 to May 2018. He was the deputy chief
executive of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited from October 2001 to April 2011, and
was responsible for overseeing retail banking business. He also held various positions in the
group companies of Bank of China Group and Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, from
August 1980 to April 2011, and was responsible for managing the business operations of

the group companies.

Mr. Lam has been an honorary adviser of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers since 201 I.
He was a visiting professor of the Vocational Training Council from September 2011 to
August 2015. He was a visiting professor in the department of finance of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong from March 2011 to 28 February 2014. He was a member of
Hong Kong Banking Industry Training Advisory Committee from August 2010 to July 2012.
He was a director of Community Chest of Hong Kong from June 2006 to March 201 I.
He was a member of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Advisory Committee from
April 2009 to March 201 1. He was a member of the Chongging Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (FEIA RBUAHE EZEETEZE D)
from January 2008 to December 2012.

Mr. Lee Wing Kee (ZEKE), aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 6 December 2016, he is the chairman of nomination committee and member

of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Lee obtained a bachelor degree of science (engineering) (civil engineering) from the
Queen Mary College, University of London in the United Kingdom in August 1976. He
has been a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers in Hong Kong since August
1983 and a member of the Institution of Civil Engineers in the United Kingdom since

December 1981.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lee joined Shui On Building Contractors Limited in April 1985 and held various
positions in the company. Among the various positions he held, he was the deputy
managing director of SOCAM Asset Management (HK) Limited from July 2013 to June
2016. He was the deputy managing director of Shui On Construction Company Limited
from July 2013 to July 2014 and the executive director of Shui On Construction Company
Limited from October 2000 to June 2013. SOCAM Asset Management (HK) Limited,
Shui On Construction Company Limited and Shui On Building Contractors Limited are
subsidiaries of SOCAM Development Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 983).

Mr. Lee was a member of the disciplinary board panel of the Commissioner for
Labour from March 2009 to February 2015. He was a member of the Committee on
Employees” Compensation from January 2009 to December 2014. He was the chairman
of Construction Workers Qualification Committee of Construction Workers Registration
Authority from May 2006 to October 2010. He was a council member of Hong Kong
Construction Association from April 2003 to June 2016, the vice president of Hong Kong
Construction Association from 2005 to 2013 and the chairman of the building committee
of Hong Kong Construction Association from 2005 to 2013 respectively. He was a
member of Construction Workers Registration Authority of Environment, Transport and
Works Bureau from October 2004 to October 2010. He was a member of Building Sub-
committee of Land and Building Advisory Committee from April 2003 to March 2007
and a member of Construction Industry Training Authority from September 2003 to May
2007. He was the deputy honorary treasurer of The Hong Kong Construction Association,
Ltd, the chairman of the Training Sub-committee and the vice chairman of the Training,
Health and Safety Committee of The Hong Kong Construction Association Ltd. from
2003 to 2005 respectively.

Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond (%t B 1§), aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of audit committee and member of the nomination and

remuneration committees of the Company on 6 December 201 6.
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Mr. To obtained a bachelor degree of commerce accounting from Curtin University
of Technology in Western Australia in February 1996. He is currently a certified public
accountant practicing in Hong Kong. He has been a member of CPA Australia and Hong

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since May 1999 and May 2000, respectively.

Mr. To has been a director of RCW (HK) CPA Limited since November 201 I, and has
been responsible for the overall operation of the firm. He has been a director of Asian
Alliance (HK) CPA Limited (formerly known as Zhonglei (HK) CPA Company Limited)
since July 2009, and has been responsible for the overall operations of the assurance
and business department. He has been a director of Edmond To CPA Limited since
October 2007, and has been responsible for the overall operation of the firm. He worked
in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, an international accounting firm, from August 1997 to
September 2001 with his last position as senior accountant responsible for providing audit

services.

Mr. To was previously an independent non-executive director of China Household
Holdings Limited (stock code: 692) from April 2012 to December 2015 and Theme
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 990) from November 2009 to May 2015,
companies listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of Wai Chun Mining Industry Group Limited (stock code: 660),
Wai Chun Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1013), Tianli Holdings Group Limited
(stock code: 117), Birmingham Sports Holdings Limited (stock code: 2309), EPI (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 689) and Courage Investment Group Limited (formerly known as
Courage Marine Group Limited) (stock code: |145), companies listed on the Main Board
of Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director of China Vanguard
Group Limited (stock code: 8156) and Asia Grocery Distribution Limited (stock code:
8413) companies listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. He is a founder of Arcus
Charitable Foundation Limited, a charitable institution or trust of a public character, since

August 2014 and has been appointed as its chairman since December 2015.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Senior management

Mr. Lee Yui (25 ), aged 46, is the project director of Shun Hing HK. He joined our Group
in October 2006 as project manager and was promoted to project director in April 2016.
He has over 22 years of experience in E&M engineering services industry. He is primarily

responsible for overseeing and managing project administration and business marketing.

Mr. Lee obtained a master degree of science in engineering (mechanical engineering) from
The University of Hong Kong in November 2001. He obtained a bachelor of engineering
in mechanical engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known
as The Hong Kong Polytechnic) in November 1994. He obtained a higher diploma in
mechanical engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as

The Hong Kong Polytechnic) in October 1992.

Mr. Lee has been a chartered engineer of the Engineering Council (UK) since August
2003. He has been a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers since January
2016. He has been a fellow of the Institute of Plant Engineers in the United Kingdom since
February 2003. He is the authorised signatory in the category of minor works contractors
Types A and E (Classes Il and Ill) with the Buildings Department for Shun Hing HK. He
is also a registered professional engineer (mechanical) registered under the Engineers

Registration Board.

Mr. Tang Keng lo (B85

our Group in July 2017. He has over 30 years of experience in E&M engineering services

), aged 56, is the project director of Shun Hing HK. He joined

industry. He is primarily responsible for overseeing and managing project administration

and business marketing.

Mr. Tang obtained a master degree of science in construction & real estate from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December 2006. He obtained a bachelor of
engineering in building services engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in

November 1998,
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Mr. Tang has been a member of The chartered institution of building services engineers
since July 2000 and he has been a registered engineer of the Engineering Council (UK)
since October 2000. He has been a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
since November 1999 and a registered professional engineer (building services) registered
under the Engineers Registration Board since February 2001. He is also a registered energy

assesor of Electrical and Mechanical Services Department since April 2012.

Mr. Lee Chun Mo (ZHRE ), aged 49, is the senior project manager of Shun Hing HK. He
joined our Group in March 2002 as project manager and was promoted to senior project
manager in April 2016. He has over 22 years of experience in E&M engineering services
industry. He is primarily responsible for overseeing and managing project execution,

operation and cost control matters.

Mr. Lee obtained a bachelor of engineering in building services engineering with first
class honours from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December 2005. He was
awarded a higher certificate in mechanical engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University (formerly known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic) in November [991. He is also
the authorised signatory in the category of Ventilation Works, and the category of minor
works contractors Type E (Classes |, Il and Ill) with the Buildings Department for Shun
Hing HK.

Mr. Lee Foo Kwan (ZXE #), aged 46, is the project manager of Shun Hing HK. He joined
our Group in July 2002 as a project engineer and was promoted to project manager in
April 2016. He has over 19 years of experience in E&M engineening services industry. He is
primarily responsible for overseeing tender estimation and preparation, project execution,
reviewing and controlling project budgeting, coordinating with customers and other parties

and carrying out design and design verification works.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lee obtained a master degree of science in project management from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in October 2008. He obtained a bachelor degree of engineering
in mechanical engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November
1996. He is currently a registered professional engineer (mechanical) registered under
the Engineers Registration Board. He has been a member of The Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers since June 2011, a member of The Institution of Mechanical Engineers in
the United Kingdom since January 2011, a member of American Society of Heating,
Refrigerating and Air-conditioning Engineers, Inc. since January 201 | and a member of the
Chartered Institution of Building Services Engineers in Hong Kong since October 201 I. He
is also the authorised signatory in the category of minor works contractors Types A and E

(Classes Il and lll) with the Buildings Department for Shun Hing HK.

Mr. Chan Ho Kei (BUEE), aged 31, is the financial controller of our Group. He joined
our Group in March 2016 as a financial controller. He is primarily responsible for managing

the financial operations and accounting functions of our Group.

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor degree in business administration (major in professional

accountancy) from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in July 2010.

Mr. Chan has over 7 years of experience in accounting and audit services. Prior to joining
our Group, he was employed by an international accounting firm as a manager in the
assurance department, and was responsible for providing audit services. He has been a
certified public accountant under Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since January 2014.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tse Kam Fai (F£518), aged 54, was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
on 9 May 2016. Mr. Tse has been a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators since October 2013 and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since
October 2013 respectively. He is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

Mr. Tse has more than 25 years of experience in handling listed company secretarial
and compliance related matters. He is also an executive director of a local professional
firm providing regulatory compliance, corporate governance and corporate secretarial
services to listed and unlisted corporations. Mr. Tse is currently the company secretary
of Synertone Communication Corporation (stock code: 1613) and Target Insurance
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 6161), companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, and Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (stock code: 8046) and China Hanya
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8312), companies listed on the GEM of the Stock

Exchange.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with the audited

consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in

provision of E&M engineering services in Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the Year and a discussion on the Group's
future business development, and also the Group's performance during the Year are
provided in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 18.

No important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the Year.

The environmental policies and performance, compliance with relevant laws and
regulations and relationships with employees are also discussed in the Environmental,

Social and Governance Report on pages 19 to 31.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

There are certain risks involved in the Group's operations, many of which are beyond
the Group's control, including but not limited to those relating to the business and the

industry. Some of the major risks the Group facing include the following:

. the gross profit margin depends on the tender price of each project, which in tum

is based on the estimated costs and time to be involved

J the Group's revenue is derived from E&M engineering services projects, which are
non-recurrent in nature, and the Group may achieve lower-than-expected revenue

if it fails to maintain continuity of its order book for its new projects
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0 the Group relies on its subcontractors to deliver quality works and complete the
Group's projects. Any delay or defects on their part would adversely affect the

Group's operations and financial results

. the Group operates in a competitive E&M engineering services industry. Increased
competition with market participants may lead to lower profit margins and loss of

market share.

Environmental Policy and Performance

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company for the Year
contained the information required under Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules is set out on

pages |9 to 31 of this report.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that

has a significant impact on the businesses and operation of the Group.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant assets of the Group. The
Group aims to continue establishing a caring environment to employees and emphasis the

personal development of its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and suppliers. The Group
aims to continue providing quality services and consumption experiences to its customers

and establishing cooperation strategy with its suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income on page 80.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2.2 cents per ordinary
share for the year ended 3| March 2018 to be payable to the shareholders of the
Company on Friday, 12 October 2018 to those shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members on Friday, 14 September 2018. The payment of final dividend is
subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on Wednesday, 5 September 2018 (the “2018 AGM").
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made approximately HK$26,000 charitable donations (2017:
HK$31,000).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders of the Company entitled
to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Thursday, 30 August 2018 to Wednesday, 5 September 2018, both days
inclusive, during the period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM, all transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m on
Wednesday, 29 August 2018.

For the purpose of determining the entitlement of the shareholders of the Company to
the proposed final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 13 September 2018 to Friday, 14 September 2018, both days inclusive, during
the period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company's branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,

Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 12 September 2018.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Year in the property and equipment of the Group

are set out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2018, the Company's reserves available for distribution to the
shareholders amounted to approximately HK$62,800,000.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital during the Year are set out in Note 24 to

the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association of the
Company (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the Shareholders by

reason of their holding of the shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company's listed securities during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors” and officers’
liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior management arising out
of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance) when the Report of the Board of the
Directors prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1) (a) of

the Companies Ordinance.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set out on page 144 of this report.
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DIRECTORS

The list of Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this annual

report is set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Yu Ho Chi

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Yim Nam

Mr. Lee Wing Kee

Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Articles, Messrs. Yu Cheung Choy and To Yan
Ming Edmond will retire by rotation at the 2018 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 3 January 2017. Either party has the right to
terminate the service agreement by giving not less than six months’ written notice to the

other party.

Each of the non-executive Director and the independent non-executive Directors has
signed the letter of appointment issued by the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 3 January 2017. Either party has the right to terminate the letter of

appointment by giving not less than three months written notice to the other party.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2018 AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable within one year without payment

of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group are set out in Note 26
to the consolidated financial statements. The Directors consider that those related party
transactions did not fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are required to
comply with any of the reporting, announcement or independent shareholders” approval
requirements under the Listing Rules. The Group has complied with the disclosure

requirements in accordance with Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors, a
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company

considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors or their associates to acquire benefits by means of

acquisition of shares in or debentures of, the Company or in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No significant transaction, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly

subsisted at 31 March 2018 or at any time during the Year.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance was entered into between the Group, or any of its subsidiaries,

and any of the controlling shareholders or any of their subsidiaries during the Year.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
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As at 3| March 2018, the interests or short positions of the Directors and chief executives RZE—N\F=A=+—08 ' EEKEAAT
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any EETBRAEBRARNT S EMBEEXE(E
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified ZRBASREEEMEXVE)HRG - HE
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the [ fn MEEZSR - BEAREES SR
SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under XV E85 7 & 89 BPAME N1 7) K Bk 32 Fir
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, (BRESEREZANBEKRMINZEIET
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the WERRGEAEENEGMNAR)ER S

Model Code, are set out below:

Long position/

KRR FREBEFSZ LG GRIIE352GEE
ARG E RO EESAR - R
BIRETARENERIORRINT

Approximate

percentage of

Number of  the issued share
shares/ capital of

underlying the Company
shares held A RQF

Name of Directors Capacity Short position PR,/ ERITRAE Notes
EEnLR Eg) #E/XR  HBEROBE BHREDH Bt
Yu Cheung Choy Interests held jointly with another Long position 246,000,000 61.50 I3
AR person/Interest of controlled 5o}

corporations

BAE—BATHARFEHN

s/ R
Lau Man Ching Interests held jointly with another Long position 54,000,000 1350 2,3
2XE person/Interest of controlled e

corporations

BE—RATHRRFEH
s/ R
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Notes:
Theses 246,000,000 shares are held through Prosperously Legend Limited (“Prosperously Legend”), C % % 246,000,000 B% A% 15 T3 3% i8 Prosperously
which is wholly-owned by Mr. Yu Cheung Choy. Legend Limited([ Prosperously Legend |) 3§74 -
ifl Prosperously Legend B BI Rk £ 2 E
H o

2. Theses 54,000,000 shares are held through Simply Grace Limited (“Simply Grace”), which is 2. % % 54,000,000 f% f% {7 J5 3% 8 Simply Grace
wholly-owned by Mr. Lau Man Ching. Limited([Simply Gracel) # & ' fiSimply
Crace BEINFRELEHE ©

3. On 7 July 2016, Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau entered into the acting-in-concert confirmation, whereby they 3, RZZ—RFLALA @i ERI R E]

confirmed that, among other things, since 21 July 2004, they have been actively cooperating with V-BOBERE Bt HERR(ERE
one another and acting in concert, with an aim to achieving consensus and concerted action on all E)B-ZENFLAZT—HE KRE—F
operating and financing decisions and major affairs relating to each member company within the GEBBAER—BTH BEREMRMA
Group. RERBAREAREARERNEKER

AEAEBERAZR-BITH -

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, or chief executives of the Company or ~ M EXFTHEENI RZZT—\F = A
their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or =+—H BMEEFIARDANKSITHA
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in Part XV EEAE) L YNNNNS PR )
of the SFO as recorded in the register to be kept under section 352 of the SFO oras  JAB (F & REF RS KM B XV ED) ML
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code 11 ~ MHBEIR Y R EEZF  HELENIRE
as at 3| March 2018 EHRBEEHIE2ERTFHETMLR

BREST RGN D A R A A e (R T

SL I AN
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN TERRAROREBRG R HE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES wRKRE

RZE-N\F=A=+—0  ARAREE
FRAEERIFEBEFENEIERRER
and the chief executives of the Company, the following shareholders had notified the MoR BRESEANTZESTHAERHRE
Company of relevant interests or short position in shares and underlying shares of  Z4h » THIRE D2 HE AR A HE R AR A
Befn SRR D P RO ARRARE SR FOR R I T ¢

As at 3| March 2018, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than the interests of the Directors

Company as follows:

Approximate
percentage of

Number of  the issued share

shares/ capital of
underlying the Company
Long position/ shares held PG A2 7]
Name Capacity short position e,/ ERITRAE Notes
=1 ) Be/ /%R HEROGHBE BAEH B E
Prosperously Legend  Beneficial owner Long position 246,000,000 61.50 |
EREAA e
Simply Grace Beneficial owner Long position 54,000,000 13.50 2
EREAA e
Notes: MFsE -
Prosperously Legend is wholly-owned by Mr. Yu Cheung Choy. Prosperously LegendfH A REI ST - 2 EHA ©
2 Simply Grace is wholly-owned by Mr. Lau Man Ching. 2. Simply Grace 2| B A2 BHA

BREXHBEEEN R_F-\F=A
=t B RAREREEFRBEEHE
BefREFNECMT - HECEEMEAL
RAR BRI B SRR o R A i s sk

AN

B e

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as having interests or short positions in

the shares or underlying shares of the Company as at 31 March 2018.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the required

standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme™) pursuant
to the written resolutions of the then shareholders passed on 6 December 2016. The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to full time
or part time employee, Directors (including executive, non-executive or independent non-
executive Directors), any supplier, any customer, any service provider, any shareholder,
any adviser or consultant of the Group as incentives or rewards for their contribution to

the Group.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as follows:

(1) The total number of shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of
all options (excluding, for this purpose, options which have lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Group) to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 0% of the Shares in
issue at the time dealings in the shares first commence on the Stock Exchange, i.e.
40,000,000 shares, unless separate shareholders’ approval has been obtained, and
which must not exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in issue from time

to time.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme is 40,000,000 Shares, which represents 10% of the issued

shares as at the date of this report.
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)

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise
of the options and the options granted under any other share option scheme of
the Group (including both exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee in any
|2-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company

for the time being.

The subscription price in respect of any option shall be at the discretion of the

Directors, provided that it shall not be less than the highest of:

(@)  the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the shares on the

offer date;

(b)  the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the offer

date; and
() the nominal value of the share.

an option may (and may only) be exercised by the grantee at any time or times
during the option period (which shall not be more than 10 years from the offer

date of that option) to be determined and notified by the Directors to the grantee.

HK$1.00 shall be paid by the grantee to the Company be way of consideration for
the grant.

the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective until the close of business on
the date falling on the last day of the period of ten (10) years after the adoption
date, i.e. 6 December 201 6.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the Prospectus.

No share option has been granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme

since the commencement of listing of shares of the Company on 3 January 2017 and up

to the date of this report.

)
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy, Mr. Lau Man Ching, Prosperously Legend and Simply Grace
(together, the “Covenantors”) have entered into the deed of non-competition on 6
December 2016 (the “NCU") in favour of the Company (for itself and as trustee for each
of its subsidiaries from time to time), under which each of the Covenantors has jointly
and severally undertaken to the Company that he/it shall not, and shall procure that none
of their respective close associates (other than members of the Group) shall, during the
period that (a) the shares of the Company remain listed on the Stock Exchange; and
(b) either the Covenantors and their respective close associates (other than members
of the Group), individually or jointly, are entitled to exercise, or control the exercise of,
not less than 30% of the voting power at general meetings of the Company; or (c) any
of the Convenantors or their respective close associates remains as a director of any
member of the Group, directly or indirectly, either on their own account, in conjunction
with, on behalf of, or through any person, firm or company, among other things, carry
on, participate or be interested, engaged or otherwise involved in or acquire or hold (in
each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and whether for profit,
reward or otherwise) any business that directly or indirectly be involved in or any business
that directly or indirectly competes, or may compete, with the business of the Group
or undertaking and any other new business which the Group may undertake from time
to time after the listing of the shares of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange.

The Covenantors have confirmed to the Company the compliance with the non-compete
undertaking during the Year. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the NCU and confirmed the compliance with the non-compete undertaking by the

Covenantors during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as those disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this Directors’
Report and also Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements, no other equity-linked

agreement was entered into by the Group, or existed during the Year.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of subsidiaries of the Company as at 3| March 2018 are set out in Note 35 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2018 are set out in Note 21 to

the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had total bank borrowings of approximately HK$ 2.
million (2017: HK$15.0 million). As at 31 March 2018:

the Group had a facility agreement entered into with a bank with a facility limit
of approximately HK$59.4 million. The Company had made undertakings relating
to certain performance obligation of the controlling shareholders, namely Mr. Yu
Cheung Choy (“Mr. Yu") and Mr. Lau Man Ching (“Mr. Lau"), pursuant to the
facility agreement including the following: (i) Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau undertake to
maintain majority shareholding of the Company; and (i) Mr. Yu shall remain the
chairman of the Company or we shall notify the bank 14 days in advance in case he
ceases to be the chairman. Subsequent to 31 March 2018, such facility agreement
was renewed with a facility limit of approximately HK$54.0 million. The above-
mentioned undertakings relating to certain performance obligation of the controlling
shareholders were replaced by the following obligation undertaken by the Group: (i)
In case of Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau are not the major shareholders of the Company, the
Group should notify the bank 14 days in advance; and (i) In case of Mr. Yu is not
entitled to be chairman of the Company, the Group should notify the bank 4 days

in advance; and
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(i) the Group had a facility agreement with a bank with a facility limit of HK$30.0
million. The Company had made undertakings relating to certain performance
obligation of the controlling shareholders pursuant to the facility agreement
including the following: (i) Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau undertake to maintain as the largest
shareholder of the Company directly or indirectly; and (i) Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau shall

remain as the chairman or director of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the percentage of revenue attributable to the largest customer and the
five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 23.3% and 81.9% of the

Group's total revenue respectively.

During the Year, the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted
for approximately 10.19% and 17.3% of the total direct costs of the Group respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any other shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had an interest in

the major suppliers or customers noted above.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration offered to the employees of the Group generally includes salaries,
medical benefits and bonus. In general, the Group determines salaries of its employees
based on each employee’s qualifications, position and seniority. The Group will review
its remuneration package annually. The Group provides a defined contribution to the
Mandatory Provident Fund as required under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for the eligible employees in Hong
Kong.

On 6 December 2016, the Company had adopted the Share Option Scheme under which
full time or part time employees, including Directors, of the Company and its subsidiaries,

might be granted options to subscribe for the Company's ordinary shares.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors for the Year are set out in Note 7 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as

required under the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 6 December 2016 with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties and roles of the Audit
Committee include, but are not limited to, (a) making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal; (b) monitoring integrity of financial statements and annual report
and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgments contained in them; and (c) reviewing the

financial controls, risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond (as chairman), Mr. Lam Yim Nam and Mr. Lee Wing
Kee and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Yu Ho Chi. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended

31 March 2018.
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EEHE

AUDITORS

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 3 January 2017 and
there has been no change in auditor since then. The consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2018 were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu whose
term of office will expire upon the conclusion of the 2018 AGM. A resolution for the
re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company for the

subsequent year is to be proposed at the 2018 AGM.

By order of the Board
SH Group (Holdings) Limited
Yu Cheung Choy

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

To the Members of SH Group (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SH Group (Holdings) Limited
(the “Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group") set out on
pages 80 to 143, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 3|
March 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

HRELER

HRERER

R FRRRERMNERAE AR
HAMGEMBRRNBARREENE
B EESHRERMEAFBBEAVHR
KRB ABRFETREN - RATEHE
LEHRREBOER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ARHMTRERTRERRELZEZAR

Revenue recognition, direct costs for engineering service contracts and
amounts due from/to customers for contract work

W ER  TRIRBENERKERER BNEFHEHNIE
o

FE

We identified the revenue recognition, direct costs for engineering
service contracts and amounts due from/to customers for contract
work as a key audit matter due to the use of judgment and estimates
by management in determining the stage of completion and the budget
costs of engineering service contracts in progress.

BB RRN SRR TRBREANEERARER EEEP
WENTREFASMRERZR RRAAEERNET TKER
FAETTH B T2 AR5 & KR TR AR A 7858 R 1 B B Aot o

The contract revenue of engineering service contracts amounting to
approximately HK$367.9 million was recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 March 2018. As disclosed in note |7 to the consolidated
financial statements, the carrying amounts of amounts due from
and amounts due to customers for contract work amounting to
approximately HK$39.2 million and HK$16.4 million respectively were
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 March
2018.

BE T \FZA=+-HLEFEIRRBEEONEAREN
GRBEERAM2EKRAREFNTIBELT - MEa MK
BEMEI7ARE  R_T-\F=A=1+—BHEAFBRR
REFRUEENEPANIEFENKEEDAIF39288EE
TR I64BEBTT °
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Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition, direct

costs of engineering service contracts and amounts due from/to

customers for contract work included:
RO IRRBEEONKEER  EERARER AR
FR&HTIEFIENEFIE

Agreeing the total contract value to the contracts and
variation orders, if any, to architect's instructions or other
form of agreements or other correspondence, on a sample
basis;

HEARIBEFIE(NE)  BEMAERKEAM
AR BEREMBARERANERRIBERER):

Discussing with the management to evaluate the
reasonableness of their estimated total contract costs, taking
into account factors including the profit margin of similar
projects, and assessing the status of completion of the
relevant engineering service projects, on a sample basis;
BERERN®  AEEGFANRKANEEL - [
FERIBURAMNMERERNE - YHHEBTIER
%8 B e IE 1T IR

Performing a retrospective review for contracts completed
during the current year by comparing the final outcome of
the contracts to previous estimates made for those contracts
to assess the reliability of the management's forecasting
process; and

HAFETRNEANETOELEES  BaNN&K
RRESAMBELRNETHIETLR  UFEE
BERABRENAELE &



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)
Key audit matter

BREELER

Independent Auditor’s Report
R 78 e

HAREITERE)
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ARBATRERTEEHARERSEZAR

Revenue recognition, direct costs for engineering service contracts and
amounts due from/to customers for contract work (Contd)

KR TRRBENEZXERER BNEFHEHNTE
HE(E)

The Group recognised contract revenue and direct costs of engineering
service contracts by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the end of each reporting period, as set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. The recognition of revenue, direct
costs and amounts due from/to customers for contract works therefore
relies on the management's estimation of the progress and outcome
of the project, which involves the exercise of significant management
judgement, particularly in estimating the total contract costs, which are
prepared by the management on the basis of quotations from time to
time provided by the major contractors, suppliers or vendors involved
and the experience of the management.

AEBREBEZBEHMRENED 2 TR (MERE BRI
AR ERIRREEONEOUERERKA - it
Rl TERREEHERKAREYR BNRFPNEHTER
RKBEEBHRBEENERNG  EFFRITEEEEE
AR (R REME B NEKAE) - BLOHERRBREMSN
TRABE  REFXES MRRUNRENREEENLR TR

?'qjo

As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements, the actual
outcomes of contracts in terms of total cost or revenue may be higher or
lower than estimated at the end of each reporting period, which would
affect the revenue and profit or loss to be recognised in future years as
an adjustment to the amounts recorded to date, as well as the carrying
amount of amounts due from/to customers for contract work.

BER A MIERRMES TIKEE - S NBRARERENER LS
RAUBESNHIERZHRERRNEE - MAEREZERHHES R
B BEELABRY FENARRFERR WA KR

J Evaluating the reasonableness of contract revenue recognised
by checking the latest certificates issued by the external
surveyors, customer’s correspondence and other relevant
documents to evaluate the value of work already performed
during the year, on a sample basis.
BRMERTIIBUEMLANEHEE  TPHNA
A EMAR X  AHEEABETIRE
B KmFEEERSORENAEN -
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OTHER INFORMATION
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include

the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic altemnative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of interal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concemn basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s report is

Hung Suk Fan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 June 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GERaREMZERAR

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HE-T-\$=A=1+—HILEE

For the year ended 3| March
BE=A=t-HLEE

2018 2017

—E-N\E —T—tF

Notes HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

Bt TER TAET

Revenue Iy & 6 367,919 290,383
Direct costs ERHEN (305,588) (244.392)
Gross profit EF 62,331 45991
Other income H A A 8 657 426
Other gains and losses Hth 23 2 &5 48 8 — 180
Administrative expenses TBFAX (19,400) (13811)
Listing expenses ilzha — (16,674)
Finance costs ER={EN 9 (410) (458)
Profit before taxation BR B A4 A 10 43,178 15,654
Income tax expense ST [ (7,592) (5,602)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 4 i I 2 TH I A 42 K8 35,586 10,052

Earnings per share BREF 12

Basic (HK cents) ERGEW) 8.9 30
Diluted (HK cents) 5w (B 8.9 30

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Annual Report 2017-18



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBRRR

As at 31 March 2018
RZE—/\$=A=+—H

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$'000
B &E TET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property and equipment EPE 14 22,121 22,857
Deposits B 16 2,036 [911
Pledged bank deposits BEARITER 8 31,112 31,188
Deferred tax assets RETIAE = 22 13 27
55,282 55,983
Current assets NREEE
Trade receivables B 5 W RIE 5 23,172 20257
Other receivables, deposits Hip U FOR - e
and prepayments RIERFRIE 16 38,954 35,661
Amounts due from customers for contract work WEFAE 4 TIENIA 17 39217 53,583
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR IR S I8 158,91 | 100,259
260,254 209,760
Current liabilities nREAE
Trade and bills payables BHRNTIARENER 19 17,825 19,048
Other payables and accrued charges HAb e 5E R EHE A 20 38,992 33,556
Amounts due to customers for contract work ENEFEHITEREA 17 16,406 4727
Tax payable eI 1,934 636
Bank borrowings RITER 21 12,057 14,963
87,214 72,930
Net current assets RBEERE 173,040 136,830
Total assets less current liabilities HMEERARDERS 228,322 192813

IEREE (ZER) BRAE
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e RBRRR

As at 31 March 2018
RZZ—/\$=A=1+—H

As at 31 March

R=A=+-—H
2018 2017
ZE-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$'000
B EE THET TET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Provisions B 23 280 357
Net assets EERE 228,042 192,456
Capital and reserves EXR A
Share capital ELZN 24 4,000 4,000
Reserves F 13 224,042 188,456
Equity attributable to owners of the Company FARERABGES 228,042 192,456

The consolidated financial statements on pages 80 to 143 were approved and authorised

for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 June 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

FOE BENGAEVEREAN_Z—/\F
NAZT-HEEZE=ei R RERNE I
HTIEERREZCHE

Yu Cheung Choy
AR
DIRECTOR
EE

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mERBEHR

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HE-T-/\$=A=+—-HLEE

Investment
Share Share Other  revaluation Retained
capital premium  reserve(™ reserve profits Total
Hite R&
ERTRE  ROBE REYY  EMRE  REEA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FiEr THR TER TER TR
At | April 2016 RZT—RF
mA—B 258 = (8) = 90,123 90,373
Profit and total comprehensive income & R FIl X 2 FIALA
for the year Ek — — — — 10,052 10052
Issue of new ordinary shares of the BITARE
Company (note 24) g AR (e 24) 800 95,200 — — — 96,000
Transaction costs attributable to issue of 4T AA AIHT & B
new ordinary shares of the Company {5 R ZpK 2 — (8777) = = = (8777)
Capitalisation Issue (note 24) BAMEET(ME24) 3200 (3200) — — — —
Reserve arising from group SESHEEENRE
reorganisation (258) = 266 = = 8
Waiver of amounts due to directors HERNESHE
(note 32) (P 32) = — 4800 — — 4,800
At 31 March 2017 R-F—LF
=RA=+—H 4,000 83,223 5,058 = 100,175 192456
Profit and total comprehensive FREF
income for the year REERALSE = = — — 35586 35,586
At31 March 2018 R-F-N\#F
=R=+-H 4,000 83223 5058 = 135761 228,042
Note: Other reserve represents the aggregate amount of i) reserve arising from the group reorganisation, st : HtFEBEVSEEAEENGEE (F204E

which mainly comprises issue of shares by Triumph Legend Ltd (“Triumph Legend”) to acquire
equity interest in Shun Hing E & M Engineering Limited (“Shun Hing HK") and issue of shares by
the Company to acquire equity interests in Triumph Legend and Blissful Choice Limited (“Blissful
Choice"); and i) HK$4,800,000 upon the waiver of amounts due to directors and credited as

deemed contributions from shareholders as disclosed in note 32.

Triumph Legend Ltd ( [Triumph Legend] ) AL
BIREEETRERAR ( [IEEES] ) K
REMm B TAR D AR B AU EE Triumph Legend
Blissful Choice Limited ( [Blissful Choice | ) A
TR ) B T2 AT IR ER R bR e
B R FJUAN A BR AR ERRR & 1% /74,800,000
FETCRARE o

IEREE (ZER) BRAE
F# 2017-18
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HE-T-\$=A=1+—HILEE

For the year ended 3| March
BE=A=t-HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TEr TET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE
Profit before taxation BR T AR A 43,178 15,654
Adjustments for: HRATEIERE -
Depreciation of property and equipment MERRETE 1,529 1,422
Gain on disposal of property and equipment HE W KRR = (180)
Bank interest income RITHEWA (495) (191
Dividend income ESEON (59) (57)
Finance costs A& A 410 458
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital & EE ©ZHFILEHLNE 44,563 17,106
Changes in amounts due from/to el RN EF AN ITIZFIE
customers for contract work, net 238 26,045 (33,682)
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables 5 MW I (38 h0) R (2,915) 8,249
Increase in other receivables, deposits HAoh e RIE ~ e KN FIE
and prepayments 1 (3,359) (9,382)
(Decrease) increase in trade and BHRENFA
bills payables KRR R )E (1,223) 6617
Increase in other payables and accrued charges HAh R IE R EET BRI 5,436 14920
Decrease in provisions BERD (77) @)
Cash generated from operations REFMBRe 68,470 3821
Income tax paid ERAEH (6,280) (13,553)
Net cash from (used in) operating activities ReZHME (IR RESFH 62,190 (9,732)

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Annual Report 2017-18



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HEZZ-\f=A=T—HILFE

For the year ended 3| March
BE=-RA=t—-HLFE

2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+F
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TERT TET

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Bank interest received BEURITHE 495 191
Withdrawal (placement) of pledged bank deposits RE(FR) BEARITER 76 (31,188)
Purchase of property and equipment EEMELRE (793) (783)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment HEME R REBHMGTHIE — 180
Net cash used in investing activities REEHFMARESEE (222) (31,600)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Interest paid SEREESS (410) (458)
New bank borrowings raised MESRITER — 6,600
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER (2,906) (8,856)
Proceeds from issue of new shares BTG SR = 96,000
Payments of transaction costs attributable to R BITHREER SR

issue of new shares = (8,777)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities MEEE(FTR)MBREFH (3,316) 84,509
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERFESEBEYEMNFE 58,652 43,177
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FOReRAEEED 100,259 57,082
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FERESRESEEY

represented by bank balances and cash ERTESRERE 158911 100,259
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GENERAL INFORMATION

SH Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company") was incorporated and registered
as an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Cayman Companies Law on 9 May 2016, The address of the Company's registered
office and the principal place of business are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KYI-I111], Cayman Islands and Units 603-606, 6/F,
Tower |, Cheung Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, respectively. Its immediate and ultimate holding company is Prosperously
Legend Limited (“Prosperously Legend"), which was incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI") and wholly owned by Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (“Mr. Yu"), who
is also the Chairman and executive Director of the Company. The Company's
shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 3 January 2017 (the “Listing Date") through
global offering (the “Global Offering”) as described in the section “Structure and
Conditions of the Global Offering” in the prospectus of the Company dated 19
December 2016.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities of its

subsidiaries are set out in note 35.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“"HK$"),
which is also the functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively

referred to as “the Group").

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Pursuant to a group reorganisation, the Company has become the holding company
of the companies now comprising the Group on 30 June 2016. The Company
and its subsidiaries have been under the common control of the controlling
shareholders, namely Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau Man Ching (“Mr. Lau"), who is the Chief
Executive Officer and executive Director of the Company, throughout the year
ended 3| March 2017 or since their respective dates of incorporation, where
there is a shorter period. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the principles of merger accounting in accordance with the
Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting For Common Control Combinations”

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year ended 31 March 2017 include the results, changes in equity and
cash flows of the companies now comprising the Group as if the current group
structure had been in existence throughout the year ended 31 March 2017, or

since their respective dates of incorporation, where there is a shorter period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
=
For the year ended 3| March 2018
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current
accounting period

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA for the first time in the current accounting period:

Amendments to HKAS 7
BRAGIEMNE 7R (EBFIR)
Amendments to HKAS 12
BEAGERE 125K (BFTAK)
Amendments to HKFRS 12

BRI BRELERE 1257 (BFTR)

Disclosure Initiative

HEE

ERBBMBREEN =

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current accounting period
has had no material impact on the Group's financial performance and positions for
the current and prior accounting periods, but resulted in additional disclosures set

out in these consolidated financial statements as described below.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in the current
accounting period. The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the
amendments also require disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows
from those financial assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in cash flows

from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be disclosed: (i) changes
from financing cash flows; (i) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates;

(iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of these items is
provided in note 36. Consistent with the transition provisions of the amendments,
the Group has not disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 36, the application of these amendments has

had no impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs and

interpretations (the “new and revised HKFRSs") that have been issued but are not

mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
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yet effective.

HKFRS 9
BRARGRERAEIR
HKFRS 15

BRM B RS ERE |55
HKFRS 16
BRRBRERERE 165K
HKFRS 17

BRI BHRELAE 175

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

B (EARMGEHRERBEES)TEE 2%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

B (EARMBEHRERBEES)TEE 3%
Amendments to HKFRS 2

BRI BHRELAE 25 (BFTR)
Amendments to HKFRS 4

BRI BHRELAE 45 (BFTAR)

Amendments to HKFRS 9
BRI BmEAERE 95 (EFTA)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BRMBHRELERE 105K
BRI ERE 285K (BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 19
BEAGTEANE 19K (BRIAR)
Amendments to HKAS 28
BEAGTEANFE 28R (BRIAR)
Amendments to HKAS 28
BEAGTEANFE 28R (BRIAR)
Amendments to HKAS 40
BEAGTEAFE 405 (BRI AR)
Amendments to HKFRSs
BEMBRELER(BTAX)

AR B ([#a] RGBT RRME
HEA) -

Financial Instruments'

TRTA!

Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the related Amendments!

REEPA MM S RARERT !

Leases?

HE?

Insurance Contracts*

RBRA A

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration'

INER Z BT

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

PRS0 B 322 ) TN HEE 1M 2

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions'

AR RERN I ZH D ENE!

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

RREAMBRELERE4RRRAOE—HERB M BHRELER
FORMBLA

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation?

RERTFHERAME?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venture?

REZFEABENAIAERRIZANEELEIEAS

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement?

ATEIERT - MRERE?

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures?

REZE R NAE AR MR IER?

As part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle'
ERBEMBHREEN _T-—NEE_T—"FBRHNFELE
Transfers of Investment Propert”

REMLHE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle?
BEMBHELERN T -AFE T+ FRENFEUE?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 3| March 2018
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont d)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019. 2
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined. 2
¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2021. 4

Except for the new and revised HKFRSs mentioned below, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of all other new and revised HKFRSs will
have no maternial impact on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable

future.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model for entities
to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS
|5 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKAS") 18 “Revenue”, HKAS I “Construction contracts”

and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS |5 is that an entity should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to

revenue recognition:

®  Step I: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
®  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
®  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

®  Step 4 Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the

contract

®  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance

obligation

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Annual Report 2017-18

BRI KRB BB BERE
ER([EBPBREER D) @)
EEFEERERNOFTREETE
BUBHREER(E)

—NF—HA—BRZERROFERRER -
—NEFE—A— BRI FEHRER -
Z BS 2 K FRRAFREBRAERR -

—F—-A— Bz BRRNFERRER -

R E RS ERI BN BREE
AlSh - RABEREG - A EMH
AIRRERT BB B HRE ERMER
RARKEE IS EGEEMBERRE
REFMEAFE -

ERUBREEUE SHKFFEHNK
]

BEEMBHRELAE ISRFITE—2
HEEN - HEBREKEEFAHOM
ELMREAR - - BENBREER
FISHEMR - BRRBE G ER
(BEgsr &R E 185K KRE] - &
BEEAE IRRESH]IRIER
RRFRITHWEHERES -

B BHRE LR E 15K ZLRE
AERMEIARBLN T EEAR
ERSERETBRANKRESE - B

RRZEBERRRBZTEmIR
BERESNNRE - & %‘i%ﬁﬁ% A

BUEPNC &3 =0k g

NS

o F 4 HRRFIUNAY

s FHBAAHNTMENERE
s FZH EERHE

s FOF: BRJEBOEEAHNF
HEHARE

s FRF R(EE)EBTHEN
B IR HER WS



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Contd)

HKFRS I5 “Revenue from contracts with customers” (Cont d)

Under HKFRS 5, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS |5 to deal with specific scenarios.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS [5.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS |5 in relation to the
identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as

well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipated that upon application of HKFRS 15,
revenue from engineering service contracts is recognised over time as the Group's
performance creates or enhances an asset or work in progress that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. With the performance obligation
satisfied over time, the revenue recognised is measured at the progress towards

complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.

In order to faithfully present the depiction of the Group's performance in
transferring control of good or services promised to its customer, the Group
would adopt input method to measure its progress by reference to the actual costs

incurred relative to the total expected costs.

Currently, under HKAS 18, the Group's revenue from engineering service contracts
is recognised based on the stage of completion at the end of each reporting period
determined with reference to surveys of work performed to date relative to the
total contract revenue as the directors of the Company considered such method

measured reliably the engineering services performed.

3.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Contd)

HKFRS I5 “Revenue from contracts with customers” (Cont d)

The directors of the Company intend to apply the limited retrospective method
with cumulative effect of initial application recognised in opening balance of equity
at | April 2018. If the input method under HKFRS |5 were applied, the opening

retained profits would decrease and the net assets would decrease.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related interpretations when it becomes

effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether an
identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases

by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Contd)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at
cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease
payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, operating lease payments are currently presented as
operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to
lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be

presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a

lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS [6.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group as lessee has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$581,000 as disclosed in note 31. A preliminary assessment
indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 6, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low
value or short-term leases. In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of HK$363,000 as at 31 March 2018 as rights under leases to
which HKAS |7 applies. Based on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS
|6, such deposits are not payments relating to the right to use the underlying
assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to
amortised cost and such adjustments are considered as additional lease payments.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be included in the carrying

amount of right-of-use assets.

3.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Contd)

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result in changes in

measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis, except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period (as explained in the accounting policies below) and
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in

exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-based payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
“Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS

36 “Impairment of assets”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised
into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

® level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level |,

that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

J Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:
®  has power over the investee;

L is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the

investee; and

®  has the ability to use its power to affect its retums.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HE-T-\$=A=1+—HILEE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of consolidation (Contd)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group

ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries

to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

Al intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to

transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Merger accounting for business combination involving entities under common
control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements items
of the combining entities or businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when the combining entities or

businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are combined using the
existing book values from the controlling party’s perspective. No amount is
recognised in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer's interest in the net fair
value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost at
the time of common control combination, to the extent of the continuation of the

controlling party's interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
includes the results of each of the combining entities or businesses from the earliest
date presented or since the date when the combining entities or businesses first
came under the common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of the

date of the common control combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as described

below.

Revenue from engineering service contracts is based on the stage of completion
at the end of each reporting period. The percentage of completion is determined
using methods that measure reliably the work performed. The method used is
with reference to surveys of work performed to date bear to the estimated total

contract revenue.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders' rights to

receive payment have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to

that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment including leasehold land and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes are stated
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted

for a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HE-T-\$=A=1+—HILEE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Property and equipment (Contd)

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for

which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which

the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets

of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment loss on tangible assets (Cont d)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Engineering service contracts

Where the outcome of an engineering service contract can be estimated reliably,
revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract activity at the end of each reporting period, measured based on the
proportion that revenue recognised with reference to surveys of work performed
to date relative to the estimated total contract revenue. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that the amount can be

measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of an engineering service contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that
it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expense in the

period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the

expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses
exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers for
contract work. For contracts where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as
amounts due to customers for contract work. Amounts billed for work performed
but not yet paid by the customer are included in the consolidated statement of

financial position under trade receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial

assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets
The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the

time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade receivables, other receivables and deposits,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on

impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for

short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the loans and receivables, the estimated future cash flows of

the loans and receivables have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

*  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-

organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of trade
receivables could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments past credit period, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on trade

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original

effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to

profit or loss.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount
of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual

arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of a group entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the

group entities are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.

Financial liabilities
The Group's financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, other payables and
accrued charges and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HE-T-\$=A=1+—HILEE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair value. Subsequently to
initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of: (i) the amount of obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets”; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation

recognised throughout the guarantee period on a straight-line basis.

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the

cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in

profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) as defined
contribution plan are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Retirement benefits costs (Cont d)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the services. All
short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS

requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and

salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured
at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by
the Group in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.
Any changes in the liabilities carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest
and remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that

another HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases

are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Leasing (Cont d)

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease separately based
on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as

an operating lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is presented as ‘prepaid
lease payments' in the consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease is

generally classified as a finance lease.

Taxation
Taxation represents the sum of the income tax expense currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from ‘profit before taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that

have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Annual Report 2017-18

EXREHERERA)

HE(E)

HELHRET

fW—IBHERKEE L REFTH
2 RAKEEDREREED %ﬁ

REREPM By 48 K0 L K2 [0 ¥ 2
%%§$%E'ﬁﬁx*“”ﬁﬁﬁ

ﬁi%@ﬁ&%%sﬂﬁ’%#ﬁﬂ
DEBEREE AEEREN - Rk
ﬁﬁT*%ﬁﬁ%%@%méﬁ :

W BE A SE 30 0 BC &R - RIARRS
AREHENHEL HEREENES
FHARRKRAFIEIRNBEERE]
WREHARNEREZEHALR - iR
Txﬂ%iﬂ&@ﬁj AR
MERE AENHEE-REIEA
BMEHE

A
TIPS A X SR ER
TR BN o

%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂW¢Wﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%

ERB G EnaBakEts
EWA%WzﬁW%ﬁmﬁﬂJﬁ
Bl > Ty E Al S B REER T e A 40
B R BART R A A B E B
B AEEMEHAHBRAGEEANS
HERRCRMAEE LEBAOT

S x| A
ES



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a

transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they

are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on
tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of each

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 3| March 2018

BHE2-%—

4.

NE=ZR=+—RLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligations, and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of each reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the

effect of the time value of money is material).

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are

measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation

of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 4,
the management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following is the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the

next financial year.

Engineering service contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue, contract costs,
variation orders and contract claims prepared for each engineering service contract
as the contract progresses. Budgeted engineering service costs are prepared by the
management on the basis of quotations from time to time provided by the major
contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the experience of the management.
In order to keep the budget accurate and up-to-date, the management conducts
periodic reviews of the budgets of contracts by comparing the budgeted amounts
to the actual amounts incurred. Such significant estimate may have impact on the

profit or loss recognised in each period.

Recognised amounts of engineering service contract revenue and related
receivables reflect the management's best estimate of each contract’s outcome and
stage of completion, which are determined on the basis of a number of estimates.
This includes the assessment of the profitability of on-going engineering service
contracts. For more complex contracts in particular, costs to complete and contract
profitability are subject to significant estimation uncertainty. The actual outcomes in
terms of total cost or revenue may be higher or lower than estimated at the end
of each reporting period, which would affect the revenue and profit or loss to be

recognised in future years as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received or receivable from the
engineering service contracts by the Group to external customers. The Group's
revenue is solely derived from electrical and mechanical engineering services with
the focus on the supply, installation and maintenance of mechanical ventilation and
air-conditioning system in Hong Kong during the vears ended 3| March 2018 and
2017. For the purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment, the
chief operating decision makers (that is, Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau) review the overall
results and financial position of the Group as a whole prepared based on same
accounting policies set out in note 4. Accordingly, the Group has only one single
operating segment and no further discrete financial information nor analysis of this

single segment is presented.

Geographical information

No geographical segment information is presented as the Group's revenue are
all derived from Hong Kong based on the location of services delivered and the
Group's property and equipment amounting to HK$22,121,000 as at 31 March
2018 (2017: HK$22,857,000) are all located in Hong Kong by physical location of

assets.

Information about major customers
Revenue attributed from customers that accounted for 10% or more of the

Group's total revenue during the years is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 3| March 2018
HE-T-\$=A=1+—HILEE

Wa ko HER
WEEAEBRIINDE L EL TR
BANELNBKRSEEFENRT
B - AEBRBEE-_T-—N\FR-T
—+FEZ =T HLEEENKSE
REMETERS  YHEEIRERS
HeE ZERECERBRRERZR
FoRBERPERRAFEME - £
ZrerRERaLERBLE)
@ IRBEM 4T E M BR SR BUR
REMAEBEREXERTBERL -
Bt AEBEF—HAE—HNEES
B BWEEINE—HIHHE—F
BB ER AT o

1 @& H
VEZFMESHLEL - TTRRRE
RERBHHE  AEEHKEY
REES MEREENEBRUEE
D REEBR-_ZE-NFE=A=1+—
B /221210008 T(Z T — £ F:
22,857,000 7T ) B9 % R R EH LR
B o

BFRIEREFNESR
RERREE RSB W25 10% 3k
N ERMZRPEMEIT

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=t-HLEE

2018 2017

—E-N\E —T+F

HK$’000 HK$'000

Fan T

Customer A BEA 85,549 80,603

Customer B EFB 69,732 N/A N3 *

Customer C EFC 58,626 N/A @ *

Customer D EFD 53,024 N/A INEF *

Customer E EFE N/A & A * 66,587

Customer F BPF N/A 38 R * 43610
* Revenue from the relevant customer was less than 0% of the Group's total revenue for * REBEE  RAEBERPHUKEE

the respective year
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HEZZ-\f=A=T—HILFE

7. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 7. EERESME
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments @) EERRSTHRAENME
Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau were appointed as directors of the Company on 9 May MEERREER_TE—NER
2016 and redesignated as executive directors on 27 June 2016. Mr. Lau acts ANWBEZEARATESE U
as chief executive of the Group. R-ZE—REXA-T++BHFEE
WTEE - 2k A REAEEM
R={TBAR °
Mr. Yu Ho Chi, being the son of Mr. Yu, was appointed as a non-executive BIVEE LA (BIEI AN R F)R
director of the Company on 27 June 2016, and Mr. Lam Yim Nam, Mr. Lee —E—NENATHREZAE
Wing Kee and Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond were appointed as independent BRNATERTES - MABEL
non-executive directors of the Company on 6 December 2016 and no B EEERHBEBEER
emoluments were paid or payable to them prior to the Listing Date. —E—RNE+-_BABEZETA
ARDEBUIFATESR KM
B A BERAKRECNREN
s o
During the years ended 3| March 2018 and 2017, the emoluments paid or REBEE-_Z—N\ER_FT—+F
payable by the entities now comprising the Group to the directors and chief ZA=+—HILEE r KEFER
executive of the Company (including emoluments for services as directors BETEL2aAATEERTE
of the companies now comprising the Group prior to becoming directors of THRAEENKEMNMES(E
the Company) were as follows: BERABRNARIES ZAEEASE
BB HE T AR EE IR A &
BHBE) M -
Retirement
benefit
Directors’ Discretionary scheme
fees Salaries bonus  contributions Total
BRI
EzHe e  BREA SRR At
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TR FET TRT TR
For the year ended BE-2-N\¥=A
31 March 2018 =t-ALEE
Executive Directors (note)  B{TE S (Hiz)
Yu Cheung Choy AR — 2,268 [,134 18 3,420
Lau Man Ching 2IXFE — 1,896 790 8 2,704
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Yu Ho Chi AAE 120 - = — 120
Independent BYFHTES
Non-Executive Directors
Lam Yim Nam AR 120 — = = 120
Lee Wing Kee FKE 120 — — — 120
To Yan Ming Edmond HLEE 120 — — — 120
480 4,164 1,924 36 6,604

JEREE (ZER) BRAH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HE-T-\$=A=1+—HILEE

7. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 7. EEREEME#E)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Cont d) ) EBRESTHRAENME(Z)
Retirement
benefit
Directors’ Discretionary scheme
fees Salaries bonus  contributions Total
RIKEH
Ezne e WBTA  HEHR @t
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
TR THET TR TR THET
For the year ended BE-2-t%=A
31 March 2017 =t-HLEHFE
Executive Directors (note)  BATEZE (i)
Yu Cheung Choy aRA — 1616 240 59 1915
Lau Man Ching 2xE — 1,528 240 59 1827
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Yu Ho Chi GINES oy — — — 29
Independent BIEHTES
Non-Executive Directors
Lam Yim Nam V] 29 — — — 29
Lee Wing Kee ZokE 29 — — — 29
To Yan Ming Edmond HES 29 — — 29
[16 3,144 480 |18 3858
Note: Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau are the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the e : RZE—N\FRIE—+F=
Group respectively as at 31 March 2018 and 2017. AR=+—H aixERk3ELLE
DRRAEEN EERITHE
£ o
The emoluments of Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau shown above were for their services EXAREI A KRB L LR
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company or its AREREEANANENEA
subsidiaries undertaking, AEBmAERBOME -

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

Annual Report 2017-18



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HEZZ-\f=A=T—HILFE

7. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 7. EEREEME#)

@)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Cont d) (a)

The emoluments of non-executive director and independent non-executive

directors shown above were for their services as director of the Company.

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, no remuneration was paid
by the Group to the directors of the Company as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. No directors

have waived any remuneration during both years.

Employees’ emoluments (b)
The five highest paid individuals included two directors whose emoluments
are included in the disclosures in (a) above for each of the years ended 31
March 2018 and 2017. The emoluments of the remaining three individuals

for each of the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

EERBETRAENME(E)

EXFRIFRITEE R BLIFH
TESNHFMARFEIALRR
XM

RBE-Z-/\FE-F—t5F
ZA=ZT-HLEE  AKEY
ERAARAIEEXNHMESR
SR E AT IIA RS B Y
2R - HERBERAEE - NWE
R BMEEFHETAZTH -

EEME

&R ALTEEEE-Z
—NERZZT—tF=A=+—
RIEFESFMEFTA LX)
BEANMEEE - BE-T
—NERZZE—+F=A=+—
RIEFEEE  HBR=FAALTH
MemT :

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1T-ALFE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

TER FAT

Salaries and other benefits He hEMmER 2,940 2,733
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRBFET B 54 54
2,994 2,787

JEREE (ZER) BRAH
F3k 2017-18
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HE-T-\$=A=1+—HILEE

7. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont d)

(b)  Employees’ emoluments (Cont d)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

7.

ESREEME )
(b) EEME(E)
REOMEN FIATEE

For the year ended 3| March
BE=A=1—-HLFE

2018 2017
—g-NE  ZEtF
Number of individuals
EEAH
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 % |,000,000 77T 2 2

HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000

1,000,001 & 7T Z 1,500,000 7T

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, no emoluments were

paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to

join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

8.

RBE-F—/\FE-F—t5F
ZA=T-HLEE  AKEY
ERDARRFALTINME
ERBIHEMARMAAREE
KRB DB -

Hitw AR At R &8

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=t-HLEE

2018 2017
—B-N\F —FT—+F
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
TERT TAT
Other income: Hit A -

Bank interest income RITHEHA 495 191
Dividend income from insurance policy REREMAFBA 59 57
Sundry income FEEWA 103 178
657 426

Other gains and losses: Hit s R EE -

Gain on disposal of property and equipment B E W KR ED
(Note 26) Yo as (BT 26) — 180
= 180

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HEZZ-\f=A=T—HILFE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BERK
For the year ended 31 March
BE=-A=+—-HLFE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TR THET
Interests on bank borrowings RITERFE 410 458
[0. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. B&BSBTEF

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—ALEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TR TET
Profit before taxation has been arrived BREE AR M HIR
at after charging: AT IEER :
Auditor's remuneration 2GR 1,380 1,360
Depreciation of property and equipment MEREETE 1,529 [,422
Directors’ emoluments (note 7) E=Me(ME7) 6,604 3,858
Other staff costs: H BT :
Salaries and other benefits e REAMER 35,549 28,246
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RREHET B R 1,312 1,196
Total staff costs BIRARE 43,465 33,300
Minimum lease payments under operating WAMELEHEET
leases in respect of office premises RIEHEERT 1,090 999

JEREE (ZER) BRAH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HE-T-\$=A=1+—HILEE

I1.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE . FrEHEX
For the year ended 3| March
BE=A=1T-HLFE
2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+F
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FEr TET
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BENER
Current tax BRI A
Provision for the year FRERE 7,602 5,668
Over-provision in prior years BEFEREER (24 (18)
7,578 5,650
Deferred taxation (note 22) BRI (T 22) 14 (48)
7,592 5,602

RZMEEE  BEHNESHILMGE
TR A 165%FE ©

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for

both years.

FA BERXEFZAEakEME
AR BRI AT A SRR T

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation per
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:

For the year ended 3| March
BE=A=1-HLEE

2018 2017

—B-N\F —T—+F

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FTEx FET

Profit before taxation BR B A A 43,178 15,654
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% BREBNETNE 165%:TEHHIE 7,124 2,583
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BERGBMAR RIS 2E Cl)) 70
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose I~ AT AR Sz AT 755 57 & 606 3,129
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERVEEENRETE 7 =

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B AR N AR A B

previously not recognised BB TE - @21)
Over-provision in prior years BAFENBERE (24) (18)
Others HAh (30) —
Income tax expense for the year FRMEHAS 7,592 5,602

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HEZZ-\f=A=T—HILFE

EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BRER
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following BREAARANMEERFNTE DERIA
data: TEUE
For the year ended 3| March
BE=A=1+—-HLEE
2018 2017
—8-\F  —E+F
Eamnings: R
Eamings for the purpose of calculating basic STEEBREAREERMMAN
and diluted earnings per share (profit for BN(RATHEARA
the year attributable to owners of BiEFRRN)(TET)
the Company) (HK$'000) 35,586 10,052
Number of shares: RINER
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for A EERERREERN 2
the purpose of calculating basic and diluted eamings L8 (k)
per share (note) 400,000,000 339,287,671
Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating basic and Mad: HE—T—tF=A=+—HILFE
diluted eamings per share for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been adjusted for the at E R E AR KB E A A T ER
Capitalisation Issue as defined in note 24 and taking into consideration the effect of the MEFHEERERNMBET(ER R
group reorganisation. The directors of the Company considered the over-allotment option AL ARTZERISEEANT
has no material impact on the calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended B APRESRA BEERET
31 March 2017. eHEE_FT-tF=A=t—AL
FENGRETRNAEERNERY
%,
There was no dilutive potential ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2018, REE-ZT-—N\F=A=+—HIF

B BT E R -

DIVIDENDS 13. RS

No dividend was paid or declared by any group entities during the years ended RBE_Z-N\EFR_FT—+F=H
31 March 2018 and 2017. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final “+t—HIEFESHR SREANEE
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2018 of HK2.2 cents per ordinary ERRNKERRSE - REHKRE -
share (approximately HK$8.8 million in aggregate) has been proposed by the ARAEFERFEE_T—\F=
directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the shareholders at the A=T—BLFENRAREERE

forthcoming annual general meeting.

B 228 (A LA EEBTT)
VTEFREREERRBFARS Lt
o o

IEREE (ZER) BRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HE-T-\$=A=1+—HILEE

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 14, ERFZE
Leasehold Computer
land and Leasehold Furniture and office Motor
buildings improvements and fixtures  equipment vehicle Total
HELH BRAR ElK
gy HERE ETRE  BORE RE @t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx FTEx TEx FTEx  TEx < TER

COST A
At | April 2016 RZE—XRENA—H 24,088 | 684 985 2,296 716 29,769
Additions RE — 430 95 258 — 783
Disposal HE — — — — (716) (716)
At 31 March 2017 N_E—+F
=H=1—H 24,088 2,114 1,080 2,554 — 29,836
Additions RE — — 106 687 — 793
At 31 March 2018 R-E—\F 24,088 2,114 1,186 3241 — 30,629
=H=t+—8

ACCUMULATED ZIE

DEPRECIATION
At | April 2016 R-Z—XRFMNA—H 2,056 896 786 1819 716 6273
Provided for the year I 705 409 100 208 - 422
Fliminated upon disposal i & 18 JH B& — — — — (716) (716)
At 31 March 2017 R-E—+F
=A=t+—H 2761 1,305 886 2027 — 6,979
Provided for the year & 705 493 6 285 — 529
At 31 March 2018 R-T—N\F 3466 1728 1,002 2312 — 8,508
=H=+H
CARRYING IREE
AMOUNTS
At 31 March 2018 R-E—\F
=A=+—8 20,622 386 184 929 — 2,121
At 31 March 2017 N_E—+F
=A=+—8 21327 809 194 527 — 22857

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)
The above items of property and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis

at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the term of the lease of 34 years

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term
of the lease or 5 years
Fumniture and fixtures 20%

Computer and office equipment 20%

Motor vehicle 33'5%

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group grants credit terms of 30 days to its customers from the date of
invoices on progress billings of contract works. An aged analysis of the trade

receivables presented based on the invoice date at the end of each reporting

period is as follows:

mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HEZZ-\f=A=T—HILFE

14, MERREE)
TRYERREEEREGEELT
FIEFI R -

HELHRIET RHEH3MFR

MEXE R E k5 F (A&
RERE)N

KEAREERE 20%

BRI RERE 20%

R 33':%

15. EZEWFIE
REBBENIREERELERE
BRAEZFELHIOXNEAH - NE

BEPRENBREZARZINESE
WERBRE DM

As at 31 March

R=HA=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\E T tf
HK$’000 HK$' 000
Fi87 T
0 - 30 days 0£230K 16,103 10,500
31 - 60 days 3£ 60K 4,434 7,563
61 -90 days 61 290K 555 1,291
Over 90 days A0 K 2,080 903
23,172 20,257

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential customer's
credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Credit limits attributable to
customers are reviewed regularly. Approximately 69.5% (2017: 51.8%) of trade
receivables as at 31 March 2018 are neither past due nor impaired have good

credit quality. These customers have no default of payment during the year.

AEEREMEATEP A TEE
EEFPHER EE&REEET
H-XPNEERES TSR -
—T—)\i A=+—8H" 2@695%
(ZZ—+F :51.8%) & 5 EWFEEE
ﬁ@%ﬁﬂﬁ@'ﬁ BEERI - %
EERFRENLTERHFRIE -

IEREE (ZER) BRAE
F3#% 2017-18
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HE-T-\$=A=1+—HILEE

I5.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Contd)

The Group has a policy for allowance of bad and doubtful debts which is based
on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of accounts and on the
management's judgement including the creditworthiness and the past collection

history of each customer.

Included in the Group's trade receivables are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$7,069,000 (2017: HK$9,757,000) which are past due at 3| March
2018, for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality of the trade receivables and the amounts
are still considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances.

Ageing analysis of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired based on

the invoice date at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

EZEWREAE)
AEBFTERBRBEBOR - ZHE
SR IR A Y [ 1 R K Bk e 0 AT
NREEEBMHE(BREEFPNER
BB ERGREE) L -

RZZE—NFE=ZA=+—H8 "' iFAK
EEESRARENEREERE
BERT069008T(ZT—HF:
9,757,000 TT)EEH - ARNE HEYK
HEMERESYEENEE BF
FARB DB AR T E - REEW
ERLELREBEEE - ASEY
BRAEEAFAETAERR -

REREPRENRBEZAHELNE
BHERRENE S ERZERR D
T :

As at 31 March

R=R=+—H
2018 2017
—B-N\F bl 2
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THERT FAT
31 - 60 days 3 260K 4,434 7,563
61 - 90 days 61 290K 555 1,291
Over 90 days B0 K 2,080 903
Total @5t 7,069 9,757

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any
change in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the date credit was initially
granted up to the end of each reporting period. The trade receivables past due but
not provided for as at the end of each reporting period were either subsequently
settled or no historical default of payments was noted by the respective customers
during the year. The directors of the Company believe that there is no credit

provision required.

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HE-T-/\$=A=+—-HLEE

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS l6. HttEWRIE REREMNRE
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FERT T
Deposits BE 526 455
Deposits in life insurance policies (note a) ShirERS (Ta) 1,589 1,530
Retention receivables (note b) FEWIRE & (FiTEEb) 36,968 35,027
Other receivables H b fE Y IE 1,675 315
Prepayments and others FERTRIE KA A 232 245
Total st 40,990 37,572
Presented as non-current assets 2 EIEREEE 2,036 1911
Presented as current assets 2 EREEE 38,954 35,661
Total st 40,990 37572
Notes: FisE -

@ RERENRARAMELESTNEZR
insurance policies of two directors of the Company. The Group can, at any time, receive REMERRRERANER - A&

B BE 4 7 AT B IR AR SR R X B B R0 4R
EfeBE(RSER])ERERR
SR AR EN RARARIIR
S EERMAREMNZBERE R EM[
BEZBERBNEEEREFNE
% BRGERAEEGRERSER
HE o

() The amount represented the deposits placed with an insurance company for the life

cash back based on the cash value of the policies (“Cash Value”) at the date of withdrawal,
which is equal to the sum of tabular cash value shown in the relevant policy schedules
with any dividend accumulations and the cash values of any paid-up additions, less any
indebtedness. The carrying amount of the life insurance policies approximates the Cash

Value of the insurance policies.

(b)  Retention monies withheld by customers of contract works are unsecured, interest-free b) EPHNEBMEAIRREEARER
2R RNEERORES K%
FARIBAAR & L FTE R A T iE
B AR T2 R% I8 B Tk B e 5t
FIE2F-

and recoverable after the completion of defect liability period of the relevant contracts or
in accordance with the terms specified in the relevant contracts, ranging from | to 2 years

from the date of completion of respective engineering service projects.

IEREE (ZER) BRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HE-T-\$=A=1+—HILEE

6. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Contd)

The retention receivables are expected to be settled, based on the completion of the defect

liability period, at the end of each reporting period as follows:

le. HBWHE  RERANKE
(%)
REBEHK  BRRESREREHNE
RRBGHEHMT -

As at 3| March

R=A=+—8H
2018 2017
ZE-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
On demand or within one year REXFIN—FR 8,715 14,931
After one year —F1& 28,253 20,096
36,968 35,027

7. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK

17. Y EREFENIRNA

As at 31 March

R=A=+-H
2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+F
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TER TAET
Contracts in progress at the end of the RBERARETHEL
reporting period:
Contract costs incurred plus recognised BEE SRR INE #ER R MR 684,469 396,433
profits less recognised losses BHERER
Less: Progress billings o EEERR (661,658) (347,577)
22811 48,856
Analysed as: DA
Amounts due from customers for contract work BWEF&HITIRRIE 39,217 53,583
Amounts due to customers for contract work ENEFA4IEIE (16,406) (4,727)
22,811 48,856

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND CASH

As at 3| March 2018, pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to a bank
as security of banking facilities granted to the Group including certain long term
facilities, carry at fixed interest rate of 0.7% (2017: 0.7%) per annum and with

original maturity over three months.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and bank deposits carry
at variable interest rates with an original maturity of three months or less. As at 31
March 2018, the variable interest rates ranged from 0.01% to 0.7% (2017: 0.01% to

0.7%) per annum.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The credit period on purchases and subcontracting of contract work services ranges
from 30 to 60 days generally. The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date and bills payables presented based on the

date of issuance of the bills at the end of each reporting period:

mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HEZZ-\f=A=T—HILFE

18. EEMBRITERARBITHE

kRE
R-ZZT-NF=A=+—H B#ERA
BAOTRREERT —RB|ITEAR
TAREENRTRE(DEE TR
B)MERNES  RETEFFE07%
(ZE—tF:07%)t8 ' REHA
B=ZEAMNUE -

BB EASOEAEERFRS
EBIFERRZBF X R - REH
BAEZEAZNUT) RZE—N\F=
A=+—8 ZBHFENENT00I1%E
07%(ZZ—+F : 001%FE07%) °

ESRNNEREANRE
MHEERSBENIREREHER
HATNTZE60K - LTARER
EMREREZAHZ2ME S EN
FERERZRZHTRRZIIMERN
SRR A -

As at 3| March

R=ZRA=+-H
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —F—LF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TEx FAET
Trade payables: HHENIA :
0 - 30 days 0ZE30K 7,147 6,875
31 - 60 days 3 260K 8,284 12,173
15,431 19,048
Bills payables: JENTRIE -
0 - 30 days 0&230K 1,096 —
31 - 60 days 31 260K 1,298 =
2,394 =
17,825 19,048

IEREE (ZER) BRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HE-T-\$=A=1+—HILEE

20. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 20, HENRERETER
As at 3| March
R=A=+-A8
2018 2017
—E-N\E St o3
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
Fib7 FBT
Accrued staff costs fEET B IR 4,362 3119
Accrued contract costs FEET & AR 11,518 12,139
Other accrued charges HitnfEzt & M 4,508 4597
Retention payables (note) FERHRE S (MEE) 18,604 13,701
38,992 33,556
Note: Retention payables to subcontractors of contract works are interest-free and payable by e BENAEREENANIREZRES AR
the Group after the completion of defect liability period of the relevant contracts or in B ERAEEREBEANRERT
accordance with the terms specified in the relevant contracts, ranging from | to 2 years REXBEREBEAHEEHNERX
from the completion date of the respective engineering service contracts. - BHEBIEREE QKBS
ANEIE2E -
21.  BANK BORROWINGS 21, |RITEXK
As at 3| March
W=BA=+—~H
2018 2017
—E-N\F “E—+F
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FET Fi
Secured bank borrowings BERRITER 12,057 14,963
Carrying amounts repayable (note): FEEEREE (M) -
Within one year R—FR 2,910 2911
More than one year, but not exceeding two years —F EETBRME 2,379 2927
More than two years, but not more than five years ~ M IA EENBAAE 2,312 3930
Over five years HRRFE 4,456 5,195
12,057 14,963

Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BANK BORROWINGS (Contd) 21.

All the bank borrowings as at 31 March 2018 and 2017 contain a repayable on

demand clause and are shown under current liabilities.

mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HEZZ-\f=A=T—HILFE

ﬁﬂ?ﬂﬁ%ﬁt (%)
AZE-NFERZZ—+LF

=T - BHREAERITERMSEE

SKERBER - XIRRBEET -

A
2

>”‘ﬁ

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest AEBRITERNERFE(TFERE
rates) on the Group's bank borrowings are as follows: KN SBEMT
As at 3| March
W=RA=+—H
2018 2017
—B-N\E —T—+F
Effective interest rate (per annum): ERERN®
Floating-rate borrowings T BN E K 2.09%-4.84% 2.21%-3.94%
All bank borrowings as at 31 March 2018 and 2017 were guaranteed by corporate RZE-NFRZF—tF=AH

guarantee of the Company.

Certain banking facilities of the Group were secured by:

() leasehold land and buildings owned by the Group as at 3| March 2018 and (i)
2017,

(i) deposits of HK$31,112,000 as at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$31,188,000) (ii)

As at 31 March 2017, the Company had made undertakings relating to certain
performance obligation of the controlling shareholders, namely Mr. Yu and Mr.
Lau, pursuant to a facility agreement with a bank including the following: (i) Mr. Yu
and Mr. Lau undertake to maintain majority shareholding of the Company; and (i)
Mr. Yu shall remain the chairman of the Company or the Company shall notify the

bank 14 days in advance in case he ceases to be the chairman.

=t- E%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ*ﬁuﬁ L)
DRERIERELR

AKEETRITBEN NS HELR
i

RZE—NER_ZT—+t&=HA
:+—E$%I%ﬁmﬂ%im&@
EE

RZE-NF=ZA=+—HH
mmmw%xﬁm: — 4 & ¢

31,188,000 7 7T )

RZZE—+F=A=+—HB  A27
EREBE-FKRITITUNRE HZE
HEEERRR (N e ERBIEE)
ETEHNEENAEAR BEATA

| () mEERBEERFERFAR
AR AL B  R() AR EREE
ERAANRER  AMETEERAE
B ARBIARMBRITEL 4 REERA
e

IEREE (ZER) BRAE
F3#% 2017-18
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HE-T-\$=A=1+—HILEE

21.

22.

BANK BORROWINGS (Contd)

During the year ended 3| March 2018, the Group had entered into another facility
agreement with a bank and had made undertakings relating to certain performance
obligation of the controlling shareholders pursuant to the facility agreement
including the following: (i) Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau undertake to maintain as the largest
shareholders of the Company directly or indirectly; and (i) Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau shall

remain as the chairman or director of the Company.

DEFERRED TAXATION
The following is the deferred tax (liabilities) assets recognised and movements

thereon during the current and prior years.

21.

22.

i) 4

HE-_ZE-—N\F=ZA=+—HLHF
B AEBE-RRAILE M
B UREREBZELERE
BBRRETENEECNERE  BED
T (A RBIEEAEEESKRE
BRBEARDRINZEARE R (i)
MEERBEERDNEETRAANE
BHES -

EERH
THARAERERAEEENEHER
ELHR(AR)EERERES -

Accelerated

Accelerated accounting

tax depreciation depreciation Total

MEBBFTE  MEGHTE B3t

HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TERT TER TER

At | April 2016 R-ZZE—REMA—H @) — @21
Credit to profit or loss (note | 1) sABE PR 1) 21 27 48
At 31 March 2017 R_F—tF=A=+—H = 27 27
Charge to profit or loss (note | 1) PREE R (MR 1) — (14) (14
At 31 March 2018 R-F-N\F=A=1—H = 13 13

At 31 March 2018, the Group has unused estimated tax losses of HK$ 137,000
(2017: HK$92,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such

estimated tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit stream. All tax

RZZE—NF=A=+—H K£&E
B A E) A 5 ET B TE E 18 137,000 78
T(ZZE—+HF :920008T) AR

HARARKENNRE Rt &
ARG HAERERELHAE
E - fAREBRS A BRBEE -

losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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23.

24.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HE-T-/\$=A=+—-HLEE

PROVISIONS 23. B
Long service
payments
REBENR
HK$’ 000
THERr
At | April 2016 RZZ—RFMA—A 364
Reversal for the year FRRE @)
At 31 March 2017 N_E—+F=A=1—H 357
Reversal for the year FREE (77)
At 31 March 2018 R-_Z-\&=H=+—H 280
The Group provides for the probable future long service payments expected to be KEBRBHBIESBESEH AR
made to employees under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The provision B {EL 8 7] 88 & K & B R 75 1~ R ET 4R
represents the management’s best estimate of probable future payments which B  BEBEEE RS RHEHATIERE
have been eamed by the employees from their services to the group entities up to HNEEENHRERETEREENRMG
the end of each reporting period, B BB B TR BR e B 2t o
SHARE CAPITAL 24. BA
The Group REHE

The issued share capital of the Group as at 3| March 2018 and 2017 represented
the share capital of the Company.

ARER-Z-\R=-Z—tF=HA
=T HNEETRARKRRAIHK
$O

IEREE (ZER) BRAE
F# 2017-18

127



128

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
BE-T-\FZA=+—HLHFE

24.  SHARE CAPITAL (Contd) 24, BA&(#)
The Company AAT
Amount
Number =8
of shares HK$ HK$’ 000
B2 E BT TiERr
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREBEC0I BT T EK
Authorised: EE
At 9 May 2016 RZZE—R"FRANA
(date of incorporation) (EMZB ) 38,000,000 380,000 380
Increase in authorised share capital ETERRANE N 9,962,000,000 99,620,000 99,620
At 31 March 2017 and 2018 R-F—tFK
—N\F=A=1—H 10,000,000,000 100,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREBHXZM:
At9 May 2016 RZZE—R"ERANA
(date of incorporation) (FEMAZ B ) | — —
Issue of new shares BITHIR 999 [0 =
Capitalisation Issue BERMB&IT 319,999,000 3,199,990 3,200
Issue of new shares through Global ~ RIZZIRE & BT
Offering 80,000,000 800,000 800
At 31 March 2017 and 2018 R-F—tFR
E-N\FE=A=+—H 400,000,000 4,000,000 4,000
The Company was incorporated on 9 May 2016 in the Cayman Islands with an ARERZZE-—R"FAANBRAS
authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares of HK$0.0! i %‘fﬁﬁﬁx L >£EH;<ZIK #5380,0007%
each. 73 /338,000,000 L AR EI{E 0.01 /&
IW&%°

One nil-paid share was allotted and issued at par to the initial subscriber and was

subsequently transferred to Prosperously Legend on 9 May 2016. On the same

day, the Company allotted and issued 81 nil-paid shares and |8 nil-paid shares to

Prosperously Legend and Simply Grace Limited (“Simply Grace"), respectively.

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Annual Report 2017-18
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THEZRBA HER-_Z—REHh
A LB T Prosperously Legend ° 72
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24.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)

The Company (Cont d)

On 30 June 2016, the Company acquired 820 shares and 180 shares in issue of
Triumph Legend from Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau, respectively, representing 82% and |8%
equity interest in Triumph Legend, at a consideration satisfied by (i) crediting as fully
paid at par 82 and |8 nil-paid shares of the Company held by Prosperously Legend
and Simply Grace, respectively; and (ii) allotment and issue of 369 and 81 shares of
the Company, all credited as fully paid at par, to Prosperously Legend and Simply

Grace, at the instruction and direction of Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau, respectively.

On 30 June 2016, the Company acquired |,640 shares and 360 shares in issue of
Blissful Choice from Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau, respectively, representing 82% and 8%
equity interest in Blissful Choice, at a consideration settled by way of allotment
and issue of 369 and 81 shares of the Company, all credited as fully paid at par, to
Prosperously Legend and Simply Grace, at the instruction and direction of Mr. Yu
and Mr. Lau, respectively.

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the shareholders of the Company
on 6 December 2016, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares to HK$ 100,000,000 divided into
10,000,000,000 shares by the creation of an additional 9,962,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each.

mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HEZZ-\f=A=T—HILFE

24. BA(#)

ARR(E)
RZE-—REXA=1TH " AR7A
7 Bl 1A & e £ K 81 58 £ 88 B Triumph
Legend B2 1THY 820 B AR 1% & 180 A& A%
7+ #E M Triumph Legend IR HEH] 82%
R18%  REBBATHRIM OB
Prosperously Legend 5 Simply Grace 7
RIFAARLDEIR 82K K |8 IR B
B RmEARIERR & (i) Ea
FERBEENESRER  ARF
[A] Prosperously Legend & Simply Grace
B R ETIORMEIBRRG - 24
HREEARIIAHR -

RZE-—RERNA=TH ' KX27
7 Bl 7 & 5 A& K 8l 5 & UKFE Blissful
Choice B 2 % 17 HY 1,640 B AR 17 &2 360
1% K& 17 (9 Bl 48 & R Blissful Choice
82% I 18% ) - FE A B AE R B
EmETRIET  RETHEBD HIM
Prosperously Legend &z Simply Grace fig
BRBEITARRG 369K K81 R (19
EEEARIERR)WAREES

BEARARER-ZT—A"F+=A
NEBBENEERARER ARAE
FE R 7R 3% 38 18 3% %8 91 9,962,000,000 A%
B 0.01 7% JT 89 A& 13 + 380,000 78
Jt(% %38,000,0000% B 15 ) & N =
100,000,000 7t(% 7 10,000,000,000
BRAR )

IEREE (ZER) BRAE
F3#% 2017-18
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
BE-T-\FZA=+—HLHFE

24. SHARE CAPITAL (Contd) 24.

The Company (Cont d)

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the shareholders of the Company
on 6 December 2016, subject to the share premium account of the Company
being credited as a result of the Global Offering, the directors of the Company
were authorised to capitalise an amount of HK$3,199,990 standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company by applying such sum towards the
paying up in full at par a total of 319,999,000 ordinary shares of the Company for
allotment and issue to the then shareholders of the Company, on a pro rata basis

(the “Capitalisation Issue”).

On 3 January 2017, the Company had issued 80,000,000 shares at HK$1.20 per
share to public shareholders through the Global Offering.

All ordinary shares issued rank pari passu with each other in all aspects.

25. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 25.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group pledged the following assets to
secure the bank borrowings and banking facilities including performance guarantees
issued by the banks.

The carrying amounts of the assets pledged are as follows:

R (E)

KRR (&)
REARBRER-_T—X F+=A
/—\E%ﬁsﬁiﬁaﬁ;ﬁ;ﬁ CFEARER
HaERASKEEMMEERE
&*&AMEE%@@MK Al R 17 %
BERMER3 1999908 THEEAR
AERORARRE - REOIREER
B1TA 319,999,000 & 2 B A RS
{ER R EBR(TEREET] -

RZTE—+F—F=H  KAFAB
ZBREE B 2217 80,000,000 X B A% 1.20
BRI FARRE o

MERRTEBRYEMBETBZA
R AL °

EEERM

RBEEHR FEERATEENS
RITERRRITRE (BRERTELN
BATER)EER -

EHEREERTENT

As at 31 March

R=A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TExT FHT
Bank deposits RITEN 31,112 31,188
Leasehold land and buildings HELTHREF 20,622 21,327
51,734 52515

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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26.

27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group

had the following related party transactions during the year:

(@)  During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group disposed of a motor
vehicle to Great Rich Investment International Limited (“Great Rich”), a

company controlled by Mr. Yu, at a cash consideration of HK$180,000.

(b) On I September 2015, Shun Hing HK provided a corporate guarantee
to Great Rich for a banking facility of HK$4,100,000 which is also under
the personal guarantee from Mr. Yu. The banking facility is available to
Great Rich only and Great Rich can draw down the facilities in full at any
time. As at 3| March 2016, Great Rich has utilised the banking facility of
approximately HK$4,049,000. The corporate guarantee provided by Shun
Hing HK was released on 24 June 201 6.

(c)  Compensation to key management personnel of the Group which represent

the directors of the Company is set out in note 7(a).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to owners through the

optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes bank borrowings

as disclosed in note 21, and equity of the Group, comprising capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly taking into
account the cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through issuance of new shares and raising new

borrowings or the repayment of the existing borrowings.
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28.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. $WTH
Categories of financial instruments ERMIANER
As at 3| March
R=BA=+—H
2018 2017
ZE-N\F —ETtF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TER FET
Financial assets EREE
Loans and receivables (including B & FE Wk IE
cash and cash equivalents) (pERERFEEEY) 253,953 189,031
Financial liabilities cHAE
Amortised cost B A 67,862 66967
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERREEBERKE

The Group's financial instruments include trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and bills payables,
other payables and accrued charges and bank borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure

appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to the bank balances as
disclosed in note 18 as well as floating-rate bank borrowings as disclosed in note 2|
as at 31 March 2018 and 2017.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to mitigate its exposure associated
with interest rate risk. However, the management of the Group monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should

the need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") arising from the Group's bank

borrowings.
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28.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to
interest rate risk on floating-rate bank borrowings. The sensitivity analysis is
prepared assuming the floating-rate bank borrowings outstanding at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. No sensitivity analysis
is provided on bank balances as the management of the Group considers that the

interest rate fluctuation on bank balances is minimal.

A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used in the sensitivity analysis, which
represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates. If the interest rate had been 50 basis point higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 3| March 2018
would decrease/increase by approximately HK$50,000 (2017: HK$62,000).

Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables, other
receivables, deposits in life insurance policies, pledged bank deposits and bank

balances.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge the obligations by counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in

the consolidated statement of financial position at the end of each reporting period.

The management adoptes a policy on providing credit facilities to new customers.
A credit investigation, including assessment based on financial information of the
new customers, advice from business partners in relation to potential customers
and credit search, is required. The level of credit granted must not exceed a
predetermined level set by the management. Credit evaluation is performed on a

regular basis.
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28.

NE=ZR=+—RLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

Credit risk (Contd)

The Group has concentration of credit risks with exposure limited to
certain customers. Top five customers amounting to HK$15,785,000 (2017:
HK$14,478,000), comprised approximately 68% (2017: 71%) of the Group's trade
receivables as at 3|1 March 2018. The management of the Group closely monitors
the subsequent settlement of the customers. In this regard, the management of the

Group considers that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk for pledged bank deposits, deposits for a life insurance policy and
bank balances is considered as not material as such amounts are placed in banks

with good reputations.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of unexpected fluctuations in cash

flows.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its
non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of the probability
of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived

from interest rate at the end of each reporting period.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HEZZ-\f=A=T—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd) 28. €@ ITEE)
Liquidity risk (Contd) REBELEK(E)
Weighted
average Total
effective undiscounted Total
interest rate  Repayable Within  cash flows carrying
MBEF  on demand lyear RERERE amount
BEANZE REREER —Fx RELE REAE
% HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TR TR TER TER
As at 31 March 2018 R-F—/\fF
=A=1+—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities JEfT4£ £ B A &
Trade and bills payables B HENRIE R N/A — 17,825 17,825 17,825
AN TER
Other payables and H A 1 ;RIB & N/A — 37,980 37,980 37,980
accrued charges EER TEH
Bank borrowings RITER
— floating rate —FERIE 3.40 12,057 — 12,057 12,057
12,057 55,805 67,862 67,862
Weighted
average Total
effective undiscounted Total
interest rate Repayable Within cash flows carrying
A#EFYS  on demand | year REFHIRE amount
ERANR REKEE —FR REER HREAE
% HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$ 000
TET THET TR TAET
As at 31 March 2017 R-F—+tF
=A=t—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities JET4£ S A E
Trade payables B HENTIA N/A — 19,048 19,048 19,048
TEH
Other payables and Hof 1 FRIB & N/A — 32,956 32,956 32,956
accrued charges EER TiEH
Bank borrowings RITIER
— floating rate —FEFIE 291 14,963 — 14,963 14,963
14,963 52,004 66,967 66,967
JEREE (ZER) BRAH

F3#% 2017-18
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BE-T-

28.

NE=ZR=+—RLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

Liquidity risk (Cont @)

The amounts included above for variable interest instruments for non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to

those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of each reporting period.

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “Repayable
on demand" time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March 2018 the
aggregate carrying amount of these bank loans amounted to HK$ 12,057,000 (2017:
HK$14,963,000). Such bank borrowings of the Group are expected to be repaid in

accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

For the purpose of managing liquidity risk, the management reviews the expected
cash flow information of the Group's bank borrowings based on the scheduled

repayment dates set out in the bank borrowings agreements as set out in the table

28. @I EZ)

RBESERE)
MR BEREHR BN EREHEE
ENMERBEMGE AR BIFFALR

ERFITELRBENIBFEIA
NEBETAENE -

1R E R EBIERMOBITE KA
LB A SR EREE |RNREER
A o W_? —NE=ZA=+—8 %
SHRITEXMREBES 12,057,000
(—==—t$: 14,963,000 L) © A
SEZSRITEFREHKBER RS
FrErElEE A HEE

REERDESRERME  EEER
BT RATERITE P 5t 8B

EAHBERAEBERITEFNEHR

below: EREER
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within 2to Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate | year 2 years 5 years Syears  cashflows amount
ik 33! RERRE
BRNZ -7 -ERE WELF BRIF REAE REAE
% HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TATL TR TR TR TR TR
Bank borrowings: RATER
Asat3IMarch 2018 RZE-\F=A=1-H 340 325 2607 2776 4783 13421 12,057
As at 31 March 2017 RZZ—+t%=A=1-H 291 3,303 3215 4385 5566 16,469 14963
Fair value measurement of financial instruments ERMIANTESE
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair WA B IR EU N FIEFGTEN £ HEE
value on a recurring basis RE@ME BN FE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.
The management of the Group considers that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values.

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Annual Report 2017-18

THEENERABNAFENRABER
R *Eiﬁﬁﬁiﬁfﬁéﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁ o AEEEE
BRE  REAMBRRIZE HIARARDN
ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%é@ﬂ%ﬁ@éﬁiﬁ AFEH

++

Eo



29.

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions. Except for voluntary contribution,
no forfeited contribution under the MPF Scheme is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years. The cap of contribution amount is HK$1,500

per employee per month.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the MPF Scheme
recognised in profit or loss represent contributions paid or payable to the fund by

the Group at rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The contributions paid and payable to the schemes by the Group are disclosed in

notes 7(a) and 0.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2018, performance guarantees of HK$31,466,000 (2017:
HK$28,627,000) were given by banks in favour of the Group's customers as
security for the due performance and observance of the Group's obligations under
the contracts entered into between the Group and its customers. If the Group
fails to provide satisfactory performance to its customers to whom performance
guarantees have been given, such customers may demand the banks to pay to
them the sum or sum stipulated in such demand. The Group will become liable to
compensate such banks accordingly. The performance guarantees will be released
upon completion of the contract works. The performance guarantees were granted

under the banking facilities with details as set out in note 21.

At the end of each reporting period, as represented by the directors of the
Company, they do not consider it is probable that a claim will be made against the

Group.
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31.

32.

—NE=ZA=T—RHIFE
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 31, WEHERE
The Group as lessee FEEER/EEA
At the end of each reporting period, the Group had commitments for future REREHMR  AEEBFBRETA
minimum lease payments in respect of office premises rented under non-cancellable BH AR 2 & P i A =15 TR R 2R
operating lease which fall due as follows: RIEHENFAEEDT
As at 31 march
R=ZA=+-H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—F
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
THET THET
Within one year —FR 499 [,189
In the second to fifth year inclusive EF_FEEFNF(AEEEME) 82 106
581 1,295
The above operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group for MRS E N AEESEEA
office premises. Lease for office premises is negotiated and fixed for a term of two ﬁi&;—; B NS - BAEHMAE
years and included a renewal option at the discretion of the Group for further two NHTEREME  RESASEAH
years, BEX 2 FHRER o
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 3. FEHBERSF
On 29 March 2016, Triumph Legend acquired 3,936,000 shares and 864,000 shares RZE—RE=ZAZ+NE ' Triumph

of Shun Hing HK from Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau, at consideration of HK$3,936,000 and
HK$864,000, respectively, which were credited to current accounts with directors
and remained unsettled as at 31 March 2016. Such amounts were subsequently
waived by Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau on 31 May 2016 and credited as deemed

contributions from shareholders in equity as other reserve.
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 6 December 2016, the Company conditionally adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed by its shareholders on the
same date, for the primary purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible
employees (whether full time or part time, including any executive director), the
non-executive directors (including independent non-executive directors) of the
Company, any subsidiary or any entity in which any member of the Group holds
any equity interest and other eligible participants as specified under the Scheme.
The adoption of the Scheme became unconditional upon the listing of the

Company on 3 January 2017.

No share option has been granted by the Company since the adoption of the

Scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 3| March 2018
HE-T-\$=A=1+—HILEE

34. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

34 ERAQTAHBRRARNER

As at 3| March

R=A=+-A8
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FTHEx TET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB A RIKIRE 23 23
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables, deposits HitEWRIE - He
and prepayments KRB FRIE 106 172
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU Bt B A R RUE 20,640 19,955
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRREA R 46,753 52,571
67,499 72,698
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accrued charges Hith e 5K R ERTE 722 3,347
Net current assets RBEEFE 66,777 69,351
Net assets EERE 66,800 69,374
Capital and reserves EXRfRE
Share capital AR 4,000 4,000
Reserves (note) {85 (P 3E) 62,800 65,374
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KAREE NGRS 66,800 69,374
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mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HE-T-/\$=A=+—-HLEE

INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 34. EBAQATMBEMRRARNESR

POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Contd) (&)
Note: FizE :
Movement in the Company’s reserves AATNREESE
Share Other Accumulated
Premium reserve losses Total
R AR ME Hitif# RitEE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET TET TAT
At 9 May 2016 (date of incorporation) ~ RZ=F—"FAANA
(FEMAZ B E)
Loss and total comprehensive HAEERZERXESE
expense for the period (17,872) (17.872)
Issue of new ordinary shares BIARRIN L AR
of the Company 95,200 — — 95,200
Transaction costs attributable to issue TR R AL BRHIZ S
of new ordinary shares of the Company (AN (8777) (8,777)
Capitalisation Issues BR(LEST (3.200) — — (3,200)
Reserve arising from group reorganisation 4 Bl E 41 = £ K 1& 23 23
At 31 March 2017 RZZ—+HF=H=+—H 83223 23 (17,872) 65374
Loss and total comprehensive FAEELRZERSEE
expense for the year (2574) (2,574)
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-\F=A=+—H 83223 23 (20,446) 62,800
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REMBHRRME

For the year ended 3| March 2018
HE-T-\$=A=1+—HILEE

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries at the end of each reporting period are as

35. MEBRARMFE
RABIHMBRARARSREDROFE

follows: NN
Equity interest attributable
to the Group as at
REBR T B ARG RE
Issued and full 31 March
Place and date paid share capital 2018 2017
Name of subsidiary of incorporation Place of operation B E{TR ZA=t-H Principal activities
HEARER s 3R A ks FUARRE BN\ ZB-tF IEEB
Triumph Legend" The BVI Hong Kong United States Dollar 100% 100%  Investment holding
16 March 2016 ("US$")1,000
Triumph Legend" RERNEHS B 1000% 7T ([ %5t )) 100% 100% REZER
“EFZATRA
Blissful Choice” The BVI Hong Kong US$2,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
18 April 2016
Bisful Choice’ ARRAES &R 2000%7 100% 00%  REER
“E2-"FMATIR
Shun Hing HK? Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$4,800,000 100% 100%  Provision of electrical
[l August 1987 and mechanical
engineering services
JRRE &8 80 4800000757 100% l00%  RAHETRRS
—ANEENAT-R
Golden Light Engineening Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$250,000 100% 100%  Inactive
Limited® 28 November 1986
BETRARAR" Bt 35 250000787 100% l00% EEXH

“WREt-AZT/R

RAREERSEZBAR
‘* RARRIRERFEZHBEAR

Subsidiaries directly held by the Company
# Subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company
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36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified

in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

36.
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HE-T-/\$=A=+—-HLEE

REERBRELSENER

TRHFIAEBREEDFHEL A
WEY BERERERSED - B
EEDELMAEFELIRSRELK
KR RENSEEGARLRER

activities. HORARREEDHRENENAE
Bank borrowings Total
BITER st
HK$' 000 HK$ 000
TAT TAET
At | April 2017 R-Z—tFMA—H 14963 14,963
Financing cash flows MERERE (3316) (3316)
Finance costs AR 410 410
At 31 March 2018 R-ZE-/\&=A=+—H 12,057 12,057
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Summary of Financial Information

MBERBRE

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the five financial years, TXEIIFES B R EZEE M B RRRIBR
as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements and the Prospectus is set ERNAEEREAMBEENEEREER
out below. BENEZ -

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

RE¥EE
For the year ended 3| March
BE=A=T—HILFE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—T-mNFE —T-LhF —FT-F —T—+tF ZB-N\F
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET THT THT THT TR
Revenue Yzs 330,772 183,788 190,242 290,383 367,919
Gross profit EH 37,685 22613 36,749 45991 62,331
Profit for the year FRE A 25018 12,142 23,648 10052 35,586
Earnings per share SREM
Basic (HK cents) EARCEA) 78 38 74 30 89
Diluted (HK cents) #E OB ) N/A" N/A® N/A® 30 89

Not applicable / NE

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
mEEE AENRES

As at 31 March

R=ZA=+—H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—T-mNFE —ZT-LF T F —T—+tF ZB-N\F
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FHET TEL FHET TAT TERT

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 39,114 35,801 24969 55983 55,282
Current assets REEE 104,962 107,909 135944 209,760 260,254
Total assets BEE 144,076 143710 160913 265743 315,536
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities RBEE 72,404 68,254 70,155 72930 87214
Non-current liabilities FERBELE 520 505 385 357 280
Total liabilities BEE 72924 68,759 70,540 73287 87,494
EQUITY R
Total equity attributable to owners RRARGERANERS
of the Company s 71,152 74,951 90,373 192,456 228,042
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